
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford East Area 
Committee to be held on Thursday, 12 October 2017 at 
6.00 pm in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND INDEPENDENT

Salam
Jamil
Shafiq
H Khan

R Ahmed
R Sunderland
N Pollard
Stubbs
J Sunderland

Alternates:
LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND INDEPENDENT

Ikram
Iqbal
I Khan

Fear
Griffiths
Reid
Stelling
Ward

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact 
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. 
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be 
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.

Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in 
under Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.
From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Fatima Butt/Tracey Sugden
Phone: 01274 432227/434287
E-Mail: fatima.butt.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



2

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34) 

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  MINUTES 

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2017 be 
signed as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Fatima Butt – 01274 432227)



3

4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is 
the responsibility of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in 
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Tuesday 
10 October 2017.

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

6.  YOUTH OFFER - BRADFORD EAST AREA 

The Director of Place will submit Document “N” which informs the 
Area Committee of the progress made in relation to the establishment 
of the new Youth Offer across the Bradford District and specifically in 
the Bradford East Area.

Recommended-

(1) That the achievements of the Youth Offer Working Group, 
and the Youth Sector as a whole, as outlined in the Action 
Plan (Appendix A of Document “N”) be noted and a further 
update be presented to the Committee in 12 months time. 



4

(2) That the Committee considers and comments on the shared 
direction of travel and of the continued commitment from the 
Youth Sector to work together, and to do things differently. 

(3) That the Committee notes the work already undertaken 
around Youth Voice and commits to formalising Youth Voice 
arrangements in respect of the Bradford East Area 
Committee work plan for 2017-18.

(Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

(Jonathan Hayes – 01535 618008)

7.  HARROGATE ROAD, APPERLEY BRIDGE - OBJECTIONS 
RECEIVED TO A PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER

The Strategic Director, Place will submit Document “O” which 
considers objections to the recently advertised proposals for No 
Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Harrogate Road, Apperley Bridge, 
Bradford.

Recommended-

(1) That the objections be overruled and the proposed No 
Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Harrogate Road be 
implemented as advertised.

(2) That the objectors be informed accordingly.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee)

(Andrew Smith – 01274 434674)

8.  *CLEANER AND GREENER STREETS AND NEIGHBOURHOODS 
IN BRADFORD EAST - DEVOLUTION TO AREA COMMITTEE 

The Area Co-ordinator will submit Document “P” which provides an 
update relating to Council Wardens, Environmental Enforcement and 
Street Cleansing in the Bradford East Area. It highlights a developing 
approach that delivers on the cleaner/greener agenda at an Area, 
Ward, neighbourhood and street level that is supported by residents, 
businesses and community organisations as part of the People Can – 
Make a Difference Campaign. 



5

Recommended-

That the information in the report be noted and welcomed.

(Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Commttee)

(Damian Fisher – 01274 437146)
(Louise Williams – 01274 431066)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 

 

Report of the Director of Place to the meeting of Bradford East 
Area Committee to be held on 12

th
 October 2017 

 
 

            N 
Subject:   
 
Youth Offer – Bradford East Area  
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report informs the Area Committee of the progress made in relation to the establishment of 
the new Youth Offer across the Bradford District and specifically in the Bradford East Area.   
 
 
 
 
 

Ian Day 
Assistant Director – Neighbourhood & 
Customer Services  

Portfolio:   
Children’s Services  
 
 

Report Contact: Louise Williams 
East  Area Co-ordinator 
Phone: 01274 431066 
E-mail: louise.williams@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
Children’s Services  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/



 

 

2 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report informs the Area Committee of the progress made in relation to the 

establishment of the new Youth Offer across the Bradford District and specifically in the 
Bradford East Area.   

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Assistant Director for Neighbourhood and Customer Services presented a report to 

the meeting of the Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 12th April 2017. This 
report set out an Action Plan for progressing the Youth Offer for the Bradford District.  
 

2.2 A Youth Offer Working Group oversees the implementation of the Youth Offer Action 
Plan which supports the Council’s budget considerations in relation to Youth Work and its 
future in the district. There have been closer working relationships developed across the 
Youth Sector with representation from the Voluntary Sector, the Council, the Police, 
Community and Faith sectors working together to develop and lead the Youth Offer 
Action Plan. This working group feeds into the core strategic group of the Young Lives 
Bradford Network and the Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership – Active 
Communities Group. There was recognition of the need to do things differently and to 
increase the sharing of resources and expertise from across the sector. The Youth Offer 
Action Plan and achievements for 2016-17 are detailed in Appendix A of this report. 

 
2.3 The Council’s Youth Service is a key player in the development and delivery of the Youth 

Offer in the district. Recent budget savings have driven and heightened the need to do 
things differently and to work closer with a wider range of youth sector providers. The 
development of a “Key Individuals Network” for organisations and adults who work in the 
voluntary, community and faith side of the Youth Sector in the District has a sign up of 
118 organisations. Added to the network supported by Young Lives Bradford there is 
significantly more routes and opportunities to share and promote opportunities for young 
people, training for staff and volunteers and to share details of funding pots that may 
support youth work delivery.  
 

2.4 The Youth Offer for the district comprises of 5 key elements:  
- Information and advice  
- Voice and influence 
- Open access 
- Targeted provision  
- Active citizens and young people’s contribution towards community life 

 

2.5 Information and advice  
 
a) District-wide Youth Offer 

i) Bradford Council’s information service for young people has operated for many 
years from two key locations – the Information Shop for Young People, sited 
within the Culture Fusion premises and the Keighley Connexions Centre sited 
in the Keighley Town Hall. What is evident is that young people are seeking 
less Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) from these two sites.  

Page 2



 

 

3 

 
ii) Information services from the two existing locations are no longer viable in the 

face of reduced resources, but the commitment to provide good quality and 
trusted IAG is still considered to be essential for the district’s young people. 
The Youth Service has now developed an alternative model of support for 
young people in relation to IAG in the district. This has seen the relocation of 
information workers to the Customer Services Team based in Britannia House 
and Keighley Town Hall, offering opportunity to expand the existing offer by 
sharing knowledge with the existing customer services team. This provision 
operates alongside a wider offer from a broader range of community settings 
(both voluntary and statutory) which will ensure increased locality based 
support for young people to access IAG.  

 

iii) Working with the Safeguarding Children’s Board and the Virtual College, we 
have been working to strengthen the offer around IAG and create a web based 
‘App’. Recognising that national use of the smartphone stands at 72%, in 
Bradford this is even higher with 76% of the population engaged in smartphone 
use. In terms of technology and its use, Bradford outshines the national picture 
with 81% liking or loving technology compared to 78% nationally (Mosaic 

Research 2016). Young people have helped the virtual college to shape the App 
and engagement will continue once the app is launched in terms of feedback 
around ease of use, information supplied etc. to ensure this remains relevant to 
young people.  As always with online developments there are many 
considerations to ensure online safety for the users and the log in 
arrangements have leaned into  data sharing agreements which has meant this 
has not progressed as speedily as we would have wished. However, it is felt 
that we are now in the latter stages of this piece of work and would hope this 
will be able to be launched in early November.  

 
iv) We have undertaken work with the Children’s Commissioner for England to 

explore her desire to develop a National App based on IAG for more vulnerable 
young people, particularly those at risk from CSE. This is to be called “Is It 
OK?”, and whilst this has some distance to travel before it will be live, 
Bradford’s young people have contributed significantly in helping the 
Commissioner’s Office to understand how young people use the different 
platforms within social media and what they consider to be trusted sources of 
information. Bradford has agreed to be a pilot area, (alongside a London 
Borough) for the App which is expected to be several more months in its 
development.  

 
b) Youth Service – East Area 

 
i)   Since the changes with the Information Shop last year, the East Youth Work 

Team has worked creatively with young people and partners to ensure they 
continue to receive an IAG service. In the redistribution off staffing from the 
information shops, an Information Shop member of staff has been placed in 
the East Team. His expertise and contacts have been fully utilised to ensure 
quality IAG is directed into provision. Discussions are currently taking place 

Page 3



 

 

4 

with Joanne Sykes who manages the youth information officers based at 
Britannia House in a bid to secure some IAG hours into drop in sessions run 
by the youth work team.  
 

ii)       IAG is embedded through the wider youth offer. The needs of young people 
are met through staff working on a one to one basis, signposting and by 
working alongside partner organisations to set up services. For instance, 
weekly sessions have been set up in Little Horton for young people to access 
information on education, training and employment. In Bradford Moor the 
service has teamed up with the library for a weekly slot where young people 
can gain support with CV writing and access virtual connexions. In Eccleshill 
partnerships have been developed with the Connexions Service to provide a 
weekly drop-in for NEET young people. Organisations such as HALE and 
Activate have been invited in to deliver sessions around sexual health and 
wellbeing. ‘Time to talk’ drop-ins within open access provision have been set 
up enabling young people to have access to one to one IAG, and young 
people are sign posted to specialist projects and organisations. 

 

iii)       Young people have been engaged in the consultations about developing the 
youth app and once launched will be encouraged to download it and this will 
support the IAG work currently being carried out. 

 
 

2.6 Voice and influence 
 

a) District-wide Youth Offer 
 

i)      The Youth Voice Framework – young people have developed a Youth Voice 
Framework as part of the Children and Young People’s Priority 6 (see 
Appendix B).  

 
ii)      Using the Youth Voice Framework we have run 15 district-wide cross sector 

Youth Voice events which have influenced key plans around services for young 
people. This has included identification of the Top 10 priorities for young 
people in relation to the development of the District Plan, the priorities for the 
Children, Young People and Families Plan and development of the IAG App. 
Attendance by young people to the Public Forum for Education saw young 
people raising their concerns around the future of education in the District. 
Further meetings with lead members for education enabled young people to 
raise and discuss their concerns directly and start to better understand the role 
they can play in contributing towards the District’s Education Covenant. 

 
iii)      West Yorkshire Police has used the district Youth Voice to undertake 

consultation around an awareness raising poster campaign that is to be rolled 
out into key transportation hubs across West Yorkshire. This campaign is 
aimed to support more vulnerable young people in indentifying signs of abuse 
and CSE, and to signpost them towards help and support services.  

 

Page 4



 

 

5 

iv)      The voice of transgendered young people - the Youth Service has 
maintained a partnership working with voluntary sector providers that has 
enabled the continuation of provision for LGBT young people. More recently 
the Youth Service has made significant steps in developing provision 
specifically to meet the needs of transgender young people. This has seen the 
local authority Youth Service partner with the national organisation Gender 
Intelligence and through sharing of resources we have shared knowledge and 
expertise that has enabled supportive work to be established in the district for 
transgendered young people. In return 24 staff and volunteers have received 
introduction training for working with young people.    

 
v)      Growing up North – working with young people from across the District 

Bradford has hosted a team from the Children’s Commissioner’s Office to 
explore the impact on where you live on your aspirations and successes. Early 
in the year we facilitated the visits to more vulnerable young people, including 
those who were living in Care, in supported housing or who were homeless. 
The findings of the Commissioner’s visit (see Appendix C) have been 
presented back to young people and the strategic director for Children’s 
Services, and has been key in shaping the District Plan and the Children and 
Young People’s Plan.  This has been followed up with further work and the 
creation of a film which has been used to launch the 12 month project. The 
launch at the BBC in Salford in December 2016 was the start of the voice and 
influence by Bradford’s young people on the Northern Powerhouse 
developments. Young people who made the film had opportunity to attend the 
launch and chat to decision makers about their aspirations for Bradford and its 
future.  

 
vi)      The Takeover Challenge – this was an opportunity for young people to 

“takeover” adult roles for the day, and during that takeover to have their voices 
heard. Professionals agreed to a young person taking on their role for the day. 
Working with a steering group of young people we saw a diverse range of 
opportunities taken up by young people including roles in health, the Council, 
Housing and voluntary sector agencies.  82 young people and 17 schools 
offered “takeover” opportunities that supported young people into decision 
making roles which included local and strategic levels. For young people this 
had been an empowering experience with a team of roving reporters working 
alongside the ‘Takeovers’ to capture and record the day. Following positive 
feedback from both professionals and young people we are looking to run the 
“Take 2 Takeover” on the 24th November 2017 in line with the national  
Takeover Challenge. 

 

vii)      Young people’s mental health services - at a previous Children’s Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting young people raised their concerns around 
services to support their mental health. Following this a further Committee 
meeting was established bringing the Health and Children’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees together to hear what young people had to say. Young 
People presented a report with recommendations called “Help today’s youth to 
help tomorrow’s Bradford”. The joint Committee agreed that a sub group would 

Page 5



 

 

6 

be established to receive a response to the young people’s paper. This 
response was heard on 27th March 2017 and a follow up joint Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting is due to take place in late November which will enable the 
Committees to review the progress and receive feedback from young people 
on the changes to services.   

 
viii) The Youth Survey – across the Youth Sector a survey was undertaken in 

October/November 2016 to identify and inform the future direction of youth 
work in the District. This survey saw 1,700 young people completing the 
survey which gives some clear directions in terms of the needs and priorities 
for young people. Highlighted issues from this survey are how young people 
feel people from different backgrounds generally get on with each other, how 
adults respect young people, how safe they feel when it’s late and dark and 
during the daytime and the pride they feel about the area in which they live. 
The Youth Survey results will be examined closely by the Youth Offer Working 
Group and responses to the findings will be embraced by the working group in 
the development of the Youth Offer Action Plan. Young people from across all 
communities have contributed to the survey with each area asked to undertake 
around 200 surveys.   

 
ix)      Interview panels – during recent months we have worked with the Department 

of Children’s Services Senior Management Team to support their interviews for 
key strategic positions including the Safeguarding Children’s Board Manager 
and the Head of Social Work Service. This has seen a unique opportunity for 
young people from different organisations to come together to be key 
contributors and to influence decision making at a high level in being part of a 
process of appointing lead officers for services for children and young people.   

 
b) Youth Service – Bradford East Area 

 
i)      The Youth Survey 

Appendix D sets out some of the highlights from the Youth Survey for the East 
Area. The following action/activities etc have been undertaken in response to 
the results of the survey: 

  
333 young people completed the survey. The survey reflected that young 
people were most concerned about safety after dark, community relations in 
the area, ASB and their level of influence locally. The majority of young people 
felt safe during the day, felt able to pursue their hobbies and interests and 
were interested in volunteering. 
 
The youth work team has set up a number of sessions, activities and 
initiatives in response to the survey. These have included over a dozen clean 
ups, opportunities to participate in district-wide events, hosting their peers 
from out of the City, single gender work, IAG sessions, drops-ins, the setting 
up of junior youth clubs, the setting up of weekly wellbeing sessions, sports 
activities and  volunteer training. Please see Appendix D for a detailed 
response to the Young People’s Survey. 

Page 6



 

 

7 

 
  Voice and influence is at the heart of all youth work delivered. However, the 

survey reflected that the majority of young people felt that they were unable to 
have influence in their local area. It is perhaps that they feel it is outside the 
youth work setting where they lack influence. The youth work team has put 
together a strategy to address their feeling around the level of influence they 
have locally. The strategy is based around giving young people knowledge 
and experiences which will enhance their self-confidence to engage in 
decision-making processes. 

 
Sessions around awareness of their rights and responsibilities and an 
understanding of decision-making processes are being delivered to young 
people. Opportunities to participate in consultations and shape services have 
been taken up by young people. These have included identifying young 
people’s top 10 priorities for the District Plan, shaping of Early Years, Health 
Watch, Public Education Forum, West Yorkshire Police and Growing up North.  
 
Youth workers have supported the Hindu Cultural Society to set up a youth 
voice within their organisation by running sessions for young people and 
coaching around the principles of youth voice. 
 
The Phoenix Youth Group, working in partnership with the Equity Centre, has 
been key in developing a voice for Trans young people. Earlier this year the 
official launch of the group took place and was attended by health 
professionals, school staff, parents, councillors as well as the Chair of the 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Over a dozen young people participated in National take over day, with one 
shadowing Kersten England the Chief Executive. 
 
One young person was involved in the recruitment to the Safeguarding lead 
and the Head of Social work, another young person is an observer on the 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee and a further young person 
sat as a member of the question time panel at the WOW event (Women of the 
World). 
 
‘Your voice your vote’ sessions have run across the area and young people 
have been encouraged to register to vote. Since April 2016, 347 young people 
have registered to vote.  
 
Young people who have expressed a keen interest in making changes in their 
communities are given continuous opportunities to further develop their skills, 
knowledge and interest. In autumn they will be invited to set up a youth voice 
group. 

 
2.7 Open access 
 

a) District-wide Youth Offer 

Page 7



 

 

8 

 
i)      Youth Work Grants – working with the Youth Offer Working Group and Young 

Lives Bradford we have, in the last 12 months, undertaken a radical overhaul 
of the grants allocated to the Voluntary Sector for the delivery of youth work. 
The budget of £311,000 was retained but needed to be aligned to the priorities 
of the Youth Offer Action Plan, with an emphasis on projects meeting gaps in 
services and contributing to the wider district youth offer. For the first part of 
the financial year we retained the existing 13 providers, but were able to create 
2 strands to the funding from Quarter 3 onwards. The remaining funding in 
2017-18 saw 22 providers securing awards for the delivery of sessional youth 
work (week in week out type provision) and 3 securing awards to seed fund a 
piece of developmental youth work. A further round to consider further one off 
seed funding for developmental youth work for delivery in 2018-19 has seen a 
further 11 providers securing grants. This is a significant increase in providers 
with the funding supporting 36 VCFS led initiatives. Early indications from the 
first round of sessional work are that 656 young people have benefitted from 
415 sessions within Quarter 3 of the financial year 2016-17. Quarter 1 figures 
have seen increases to 977 individual young people benefitting from 476 
sessions.    

  
ii)      Accreditation and The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award – Youth workers have 

worked with 241 young people to gain Accredited Outcomes in 2016-17. This 
includes ASDAN qualifications, the Lord Mayor’s Award and The Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award.  

 
iii)      In partnership with the Regional Duke of Edinburgh’s Award Charity we have 

successfully remodelled the provision and accessibility for young people to 
enrol on the Award across the Bradford area. This model has seen 28 schools 
directly licensing their Award activity to the Awards Operations Team, with 
1985 young people enrolled to participate. In addition to this there are 805 
young people gaining full awards, which is more than 3 times as many as last 
year’s and puts the figure at an all-time high. In addition there are various 
voluntary organisations operating through the Bradford licence, who again this 
year have seen growth. Through direct support from the operations team over 
100 members of teaching staff have received introduction to Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award and eDofE training, 40 new Award Expedition Assessors 
have been trained and 24 new Expedition Leaders have been trained. 
 
The local authority Youth Service retains a licence to continue to deliver the 
Award until March 2018. Currently it runs Award activity in 4 constituency 
locations, supporting 452 individual participants. Since April 2016 the Youth 
Service has supported young people to complete 136 Awards (88 Bronze, 37 
Silver and 11 Gold Awards). The Youth Service provision is heavily reliant on a 
team of youth service volunteers who support the direct delivery of the Award 
and particularly the expedition section. We are working directly with the Award 
volunteers and the Regional Award office to explore different deliver models 
for the continuation of some of the Award-related work which will include 
sourcing alternative funding streams for some groups. The Youth Service 

Page 8



 

 

9 

retains a store of outdoor education equipment, which is available to any 
young person in the district regardless of where they take part in the Award. 
We have, during the last 10 months worked closely with a team of volunteers 
in preparation for the transition of the management of these stores to a 
voluntary sector group. This will enable and support young people to be able 
to both continue to access equipment, but also to undertake volunteering 
hours by supporting the running of the stores. 

 
b) Youth Service – Bradford East Area 

 
iv)      Youth Service Ward-based provision – The Youth Service continues to offer 

a ward-based open access provision as part of the youth offer. There are 
47,817 young people in the 13-19 cohort and during 2016-17 there were 7,572 
individual young people who have attended one or more Youth Service 
sessions. These provisions are detailed in the profiles of provision in Appendix 
E and are led by a ward-based youth worker. Increasingly we are seeing 
sessions delivered in partnership with other youth providers which is 
increasing the use of resources and removing duplication. The Youth Service 
continues to have a pivotal role in empowering and supporting the 
development of locality based provisions for young people. This includes 
working with and alongside volunteers in a range of settings and supporting 
training and skill building to deliver ward-based provision. 

 
2.8 Targeted provision  

 
a) District-wide Youth Offer 
 

i)       Early Help – The changing face of Early Help has seen youth work input into 
the 2 pilot Early Help hubs in Keighley and BD3, 4 and 5. The learning and 
successes of these pilots have enabled a district wide roll out of the Early Help 
model in January this year. These 5 hubs will see increased joining up and co-
ordinated responses to families and young people from across the  youth 
sector within the hub areas, ensuring families and young people have the best 
possible voluntary engagement and interventions early in the life of identified 
problems.  

 
ii)       Targeted Support – The Youth Service continues to identify through its needs 

assessments areas of targeted support. This includes work undertaken in 
school settings through the provision of Teenage Information 
Centres/Teenage Advice Centres (TICTACs) where one-to-one support can 
be provided on a broad range of social and emotional issues. Commonly 
youth workers are supporting young people in increasing resilience and critical 
thinking around issues such as bullying, mental health and relationships.  

 
iii)       CSE Hub – Youth Workers are working closely with the district wide CSE Hub, 

taking referrals for young people at Tier 1 (low risk), identified as those who 
undertake or are in peer groups where there are concerns or risk taking 
behaviours. The Youth Service Youth Workers have worked with 64 young 

Page 9



 

 

10 

people since this work commenced, providing 1-1 support, and using a ‘Signs 
of Safety’ framework to enabling these young people to develop local support 
networks and feel empowered to make positive choices in their lives.    

 

iv)       Youth Work Grants – the realignment of the Youth Work Grants has seen a 
significant increase in the number of Voluntary, Community and Faith 
providers securing grants for youth work. This means we are beginning to 
build clearer evidence of an increased offer to those groups identified 
previously by the Youth Offer Review as being “bordering on insufficient 
services”. This included young people who were affected by drug misuse, 
young parents, LGBT young people, young people who had been homeless, 
missing from home or had ran away and those who were from New Migrant 
Communities or who had mental health problems.  

 
v)       Fire Fit – Bradford has seen the first cohort of young people through the Fire 

Fit Training. Run by West Yorkshire Fire Service this is a programme 
designed and targeted towards young people who have disengaged with 
physical activity. It uses fire fighter training as a tool for re-engaging young 
people into regular physical activity.  

 
vi)       Bradford District Police through their Safer Neighbourhoods and 

Partnerships Team are undertaking a range of projects offering targeted youth 
provision. The vast majority are focused on engagement of vulnerable young 
people, with opportunities for young people to gain an insight into policing. 
Through the Police partnership working they offer a range of activities 
designed to divert young people away from crime, especially in the school 
holidays. The E-Safety Team engages and educates young people around 
online safety, with school and community engagement opportunities. The 
Police Spring, Summer and Autumn camps recruit staff and volunteers 
from a wide range of services to deliver diversionary activities in school 
holiday periods. The Police Explorers programme offers young people 15-18 
a real insight into policing, working on evenings and weekends to undertake 
project work. Safer Schools Officers are aligned to schools in the district and 
run bespoke sessions with students. The Police Ridealong Scheme offers 
young people 16-18 years an opportunity to work alongside a police officer 
whilst on duty.   

 
b) Youth Service – Bradford East Area 

           The youth work team have run a number of initiatives to support     
            vulnerable young people.   

             
One to one support  
The youth service offers a one to one service to vulnerable young people. 
Referrals are taken from CAMHS through the Buddy Project, the CSE Hub, 
the Gateway and the Early Help Panels. Since the 1 April 2017 the team has 
worked with 66 young people. Each young person is offered one to one on a 
weekly basis and  is worked with for twelve weeks. Workers draw up a plan 
with the young person identifying challenges they face and building stepping 

Page 10



 

 

11 

stones to overcome challenges. At the end of the 12 weeks young people are 
engaged into youth service provision, activities / projects they are interested in 
run by other agencies, specialist services, Wrap, Sweet Wrappers or My 
space. 
 
This work is often complex and time consuming. Time is needed to build 
relationships with young people in order to begin to discuss sensitive issues 
young people face. Workers are often chasing up agencies for services, 
accompanying young people to appointments, and dealing with mental and 
emotional difficulties.  
 
Workers have been trained to deliver the WRAP course (Wellness Resilience 
Action Planning). WRAP is a closed group which runs for 12 weeks for young 
people who have been referred for one to one support. Its focus is self-care 
and resilience. Having attended the WRAP, young people are encouraged to 
participate in the Sweet Wrapper course which is a step towards the 
participants self-managing the sessions. 
  
 My Space, run by youth workers, operates weekly on Friday evenings and is 
a drop-in for vulnerable young people who have been referred to the service. 
The sessions are focussed on emotional wellbeing with young people 
identifying what subject areas they would like to discuss. 
 
Time to talk  
Youth service offers 10 hours per week one to one support in Hanson School 
for students who need emotional support. Referrals are made by school staff. 
Issues raised include self-harm, low self-esteem, domestic violence, and 
anger management. Young people are given space to explore issues and 
supported in putting together action plans and coping strategies. 
 
Transgender young people  
The partnership with the Equity Centre secured a youth work development 
grant for the Phoenix Youth Group. The group meets bi weekly and 67 people 
are registered with a regular turnout of 12 young people. Earlier in the year 
young people launched the group with a presentation about the group and 
their needs .Young people have had one to one support and engaged in a 
number of activities such as youth voice events, body positivity sessions, 
organised fund raising events, attended residentials, and had the opportunity 
to meet specialist workers from the Tavistock Clinic to ask questions and gain 
information. Workers have run training for school staff and health 
professionals and later this year Phoenix will launch its parents and carers 
support group. 

 
Transition to Secondary school. 
Springwood Partnership summer camp set up by local councillors and 
supported by Hanson School and youth workers, targeted young people 
transitioning into Hanson school year 7. Youth workers and Councillors 
worked together doing home visits to target those identified who would 

Page 11



 

 

12 

possibly struggle to transition well and who could benefit from a camp to look  
at the schools three themes of being ready, resilient and respectful.  
 
After a review and much planning, fund raising and partnership work between 
Councillors, the Springfield Centre Development Worker, Hanson School and 
the Idle and Thackley Youth Worker, Springwood Partnership secured funding 
and support to expand the programme to offer to all young people 
transitioning into secondary school. 76 students spent the first 2 weeks in 
school with sessions being delivered by school staff focused on skills needed 
to transition well and to support them to get a good start to the new academic 
year. 
 
Weeks three and four saw 42 participants, including some students who were 
transitioning into Immanuel College and some identified by workers needing 
additional support to succeed in school, attend one of three sites:  Springfield, 
Ravenscliffe or Greenwood. Youth workers and councillors delivered a 
programme along the same themes; respect, resilience, and being ready with 
a focus on communities. For instance, sessions covered safety, support, 
engagement in services and personal development. In the afternoons  all 
three centres opened up their doors to any young person in the area to 
engage in a variety of arts, sport, cooking and fitness sessions with 
approximately 100 children and young people benefitting from the whole 
project. 

 
Week five saw 42 young people attend a 3 day residential of personal 
development activities designed around resilience at Dearn Valley, Doncaster. 
This was also an opportunity to bring all the groups together to celebrate their 
success and have fun. 
 
Lots of the students attending the summer camp are now attending weekly 
sessions with the youth service and receiving on-going support. 
 
The school has already started to identify students to be referred to Early 
Help. They will be allocated to youth workers for one to one support. 

 
Anti Social Behaviour (ASB)  
Over the year requests have come to the service from police, ASB panel and 
councillors to carry out detached work in hot spot areas. All requests have 
been met and programmes of activities have been carried out targeting young 
people involved in ASB 
 
Two residentials have taken place for young men with an initial focus to 
engage them in activity. A six week programme for young people involved in 
ASB or at risk of ASB has taken place. The programme gave young people a 
space to gain a better understanding of ASB, explore their attitudes and 
behaviours and look at the consequences of ASB and crime on others and 
themselves. Partnership work with All Teed Up enabled a range of positive 
activities for young people over school holidays. Activities included golf, 

Page 12



 

 

13 

jogging, circuit training and boxercise. A further partnership with the Big Swing 
enabled small group work sessions with young people not in mainstream 
education on limited timetables and home educated who were at risk of ASB 
to engage in personal development sessions. In a bid to engage young people 
as active citizens two drama projects were set and run with Freedom Studio 
which gave young people the space to explore community and their 
involvement. 

 
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)   
A range of initiatives has been developed to build resilience for vulnerable 
young people involved with CSE or at risk of CSE. Amongst these have been 
personal development courses, body positivity, understanding relationships, 
social media risk and safety and activities for young parent and babies. Single 
gender work has also been developed with the girls’ and boys’ nights-in and a 
young women’s session runs weekly at Women’s Zone. 
 
LAC and Care Leavers 
All units are visited regularly to offer one to one support to young people and 
invited to engage in wider activities run across East. Information is passed on 
a quarterly basis to the units and fostering and adoption units. 
 
Young people with disabilities 
A partnership has developed with the Snoop Project where a youth worker 
works alongside the team in delivering a programme of activities. Youth 
workers have enabled young people to receive accreditations and additional 
sessions outside the weekly sessions for activities such as bowling and ice 
skating. 
 

 
2.9 Active citizens and young people’s contribution towards community life   

 
a) District-wide Youth Offer 
 

i)       People Can - The district wide “People can” initiative has been warmly 
embraced by young people from across the youth sector with increased 
numbers taking part in community based activity. The development of a 
“Young People Can” arm to the initiative has empowered more young people 
to get involved. There are many examples from across the district evidenced 
on the People Can website at: www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk. This 
shows the range of active citizenship activity undertaken by young people 
including many examples of neighbourliness, volunteering, raising money for 
good causes and taking part in community action.  

 
ii)       National Citizenship Service (NCS) has seen 1039 of Bradford’s young 

people using their free time to take part in this national programme during 
2016, with a further 800 already signed up for this year’s Summer 
Programme. From the 2016 cohort 53 young people have taken up the 
opportunity to progress to the NCS Graduates programme, and these young 

Page 13

http://www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk/


 

 

14 

people will be trained to take an active role in supporting the delivery of this 
coming summer’s activities. The NCS programmes run during school holiday 
periods recruiting young people who are 15/16 years of age from across the 
district to come together in cohorts of between 12-15 young people to develop 
and take action in response to locally identified needs in an area. Bradford 
young people raised £10,014 for community partners in the Summer of 2016. 
Feedback from young people who have participated in these programmes has 
been extremely positive with 87% of participants reporting increased skills and 
confidence. 

 
iii)       Formalised partnerships with education providers – There are good 

examples of the impact of youth work practice within a more formal 
educational setting. In partnership with schools the Youth Service offers a 
range of programmes of citizenship, anger management, conflict resolution 
and one-to-one support that supports and enables more vulnerable young 
people to remain within formal education.  

 
iv)       Informal Learning – a broad offer of informal learning is offered by youth 

workers using a Youth Service Curriculum. This curriculum is underpinned by 
a commitment to make activity fun and engaging, whilst presenting challenge 
and opportunity for personal and social development for young people who 
participate. Young people are presented with choices and are encouraged and 
supported to make a positive contribution towards the communities in which 
they live and within the wider district.  

 
v)       Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee – the Committee has been 

supportive and encouraging of youth voice within its meetings. A number of 
young people have attended Committee meetings over the last 12 months, 
and have had their voices heard, with regular attendance by a small number. 
Work is now being developed to ensure those in regular attendance are 
representative of a wider youth voice.  

 
b) Youth Service – Bradford East Area 

 
           Youth workers work within a frame work to encourage active citizenship. 

Informal sessions giving young people the space to learn about self, develop 
self-confidence and self-respect through fun activities take place within open 
access sessions. Through a gentle process of engagement young people are 
able to explore their rights, responsibilities and their contribution both to the 
community they live in and wider community. This journey leads young people 
into active participation into community life through volunteering at differing 
levels. Young people’s contribution is recognised through accreditations. 
Since April 1st 2016 253 young people have undertaken accreditations.  

 
Three formal volunteering courses have taken place with 41 participants. Of 
the 41 participants sixteen showed a keen commitment to develop further their 
skills in working within the community. As a result the youth work team 
designed and delivered the Local Youth Work Award which is a nationally 

Page 14



 

 

15 

recognised part time youth work qualification which all sixteen are currently 
under-taking. Some young people’s commitments have been rewarded by 
employment. Appendix G displays the journeys of four young volunteers who 
have recently gained posts as casual youth workers with the service. Young 
people have engaged in a range of community events and volunteering 
activities please see Appendix H. 
 

2.10 The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector in Bradford contributes a diverse and rich 
offer to the key elements of the Youth Offer. A number of examples of this are detailed in 
Appendix F.   
 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
  

No other considerations. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1      As part of the Budget decisions taken by the Council for the financial year 2016-18 

the Youth Service budget is on course to deliver savings of £750,000.  
The Youth Service budget will see a realignment of resources based on the Youth 
Population from April 2017. The local authority has committed £1.8m to the Youth 
Service for 2017-18.  
 

4.2      This is set in the context of reduced financial resources for the whole of the    
Youth Sector and the delivery of youth work, including the voluntary, community and faith 
providers. 
 

4.3   The Youth Service budget whilst devolved to the respective Area Committee also  
supports aspects of district wide provision.  
 

4.4      There are increasing numbers of Voluntary and Community providers who are     
      contributing towards the district’s Youth Offer through delivery of services that are  
   funded from external resources.  
 
 
5.        RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 
The Youth Offer Working Group is chaired by the Commissioner (Youth Provisions) and 
includes the Area Co-ordinator with lead responsibility for the Youth Service. Other 
members of the Working Group are representatives from Young Lives Bradford, 
Voluntary, Community and Faith Groups and the Police.   
 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

6.1  The Council has a responsibility to co-ordinate and offer support for the Health and    
            Well-being of Young People set down by Statutory Guidance issued in 2012.  
  

Page 15



 

 

16 

The duty is to secure equality of access for all young people to the positive, preventative 
and early help they need to improve their well-being. This includes youth work and other 
services and activities that:  

 Connect young people with communities so they contribute to society including 
through volunteering and ensure they have a voice in decisions affecting them.  

 Offer young people opportunities in safe environments so they develop a sense of 
belonging, socialise safely with their peers, enjoy social mixing, experience time 
with older people and develop relationships with adults they trust 

 Support the personal and social development of young people to build capabilities 
needed for learning, work ad the transition to adulthood 

 Improve young people’s physical and mental health and emotional well-being 

 Help those at risk of dropping out of learning or not achieving their full potential to 
engage and attain in education or training; and 

 Raise young people’s aspirations, build resilience and informs their decisions – 
particularly to address risky behaviours 

 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

The Youth Service has a responsibility to ensure that the services are accessible to all 
young people and that participation in the service reflects this approach. Specific 
targeted work takes place to encourage participation from under represented groups. 

            
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging groups 
and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and 
environmental well being of their communities. 
 
The Youth Work Developmental Grants have inbuilt sustainability plans, activated from 
the offset of the grant in an attempt to reduce dependency on Council funding and grants 
in future years.  

 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

No greenhouse gas emissions apparent within the context of this report.  
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are a number of youth work projects who are concerned and driven to improve 
Community Safety within local communities. The increased opportunities and 
involvement of young people in local decision making has the potential to improve 
Community Safety. The Youth Sector provides positive experiences for young people 
helps to build self-confidence, raise aspiration and can provide and encourage 
‘diversionary activities’, these are key contributors in  builds and helps to support safer 
and stronger communities.  

Page 16



 

 

17 

 
The Commissioner (Youth Provisions) works with the district wide Anti-Social Behaviour 
Panel, the Youth Service and key providers across the Youth Sector to ensure young 
people are informed of the consequences of their participation in Anti –Social 
Behaviours. This ensures early interventions, joined up responses and positive 
requirements are offered to reduce criminalisation of young people and support 
community safety  

 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations below. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for Trade Unions arising from this report. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

District-wide Youth Service work and activities support young people and communities 
within all the Wards in the Bradford District. 

 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 

Youth Service projects and activities support priorities within each Constituencies Area 
Committee Action Plan. 

 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None. 
 

9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 That Bradford East Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this report.  

 
9.2 That Bradford East Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this report, 

with amendments.  
 
9.3  That Bradford East Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations outlined 

in this report.  
 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the achievements of the Youth Offer Working Group, and the Youth Sector as a 

whole, as outlined in the Action Plan (Appendix A of this report) be noted and a further  
update be presented to this Committee in 12 months time.  

 

Page 17



 

 

18 

10.2 That the Committee considers and comments on the shared direction of travel and of the 
continued commitment from the Youth Sector to work together, and to do things 
differently.  

 
10.3 That the Committee notes the work already undertaken around Youth Voice and commits 

to formalising Youth Voice arrangements in respect of the Bradford East Area Committee 
work plan for 2017-18. 

 
 
11.  APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A - Youth Offer Action Plan and Progress Update 2016-17 
Appendix B - Youth Voice Framework  
Appendix C - Growing up North – Feedback from the Commissioner’s Office   
Appendix D - The Youth Survey – Snapshot of Results for the Bradford East Area 
Appendix E - Profiles of Provision for the Bradford East Area 
Appendix F - VCFS delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer  
Appendix G – Journey of young volunteers in Bradford East   
Appendix H – Community and Engagement Activities  

 
 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Bradford Youth Offer Review, Document ‘BQ’, Council Executive, 10th March 2015  
 
12.2 Delivering a new Youth Offer for Bradford, Document ‘BH’, Children’s Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, 12th April 2016  
 

Page 18



 

 

19 

Appendix A 
 

Youth Offer Action Plan and Progress Update  
 

1. Information, Advice and Guidance 
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

1.1 That IT solutions and technological 
responses are explored and maximised  

 

 Explored the potential of an app, Market testing with young 
people  

 Working  with the BSCB to develop their information App  

 Increased use of facebook through area offices to evidence 
work and celebrate contributions made by young people 

 10 young people from the Bradford West involved in giving 
feedback on the new Youth Information and Guidance App 
being created for Young people.  

 Regular IAG posts put on Facebook Pages within Constituency 
areas 

Green  

1.2  That Information, Advice and Guidance 
(IAG) work is delivered by face-to-face 
youth workers and embedded into all 
youth work provision in the district 

 

 Piloting in Wyke area the Wyke Library Youth Workers 
delivering ward based drop in sessions  

 All the Youth Work Sessional grants recipients have clause for 
IAG incorporation into their projects which will be monitored 
quality  

  All youth service provisions have IAG available and visible to 
all young people these all include positive images of young 
people. 

 JNC qualified Youth Information Officer has supported youth 
work projects across the district to develop IAG offer  

Green  

1.3 Manage the closing of information 
shops and develop approaches that 
enable wider access to a range of 
information to a wider group of 
organisations and providers  
 

 Action plan put in place to ensure the effective closure of the 
Shop 

 Information shared with partners and young people on 
appropriate services that can be used in the future 

 Wider development of IAG services district wide 

 Alignment of Youth Information Services to Customer Services 

Green  

P
age 19



 

 

20 

Team  

1.4  Involving young people in planning 
future information needs of the youth 
population  
 

 Sessions with young people undertaken District Wide around 
development of the Children and Young People’s Plan and the 
District Plan 

 Young People involved in the visit by Children’s Commissioner  

 The Youth Survey completed by young people from across the 
district and this informing future directions  

Green  

 
 

2. Voice and Influence  
 

Code Actions Progress Description RAG Status 

2.1 We should build on the existing youth 
voice work and look to ensure pathways 
that enable this to become more joined 
up across the District.   

 

 Development of the District wide Youth Voice Framework  

 Commitment by youth sector to work together on district wide youth 
voice events delivering 15 district wide opportunities this year (16-
17) 

 Regular feedback to young people about difference made from their 
participation in youth voice events 

Green  

2.2 That we should share good practice and 
create opportunities for Youth Voice to 
be embedded into youth work practice 

 

 In Bradford West there are Allerton & Thornton Youth Council and 
Clayton Junior Parish council in partnership with Clayton Full Parish 
Council. 

 Youth Service advanced practitioners meet regularly to share 
good practice and develop service and district wide responses  

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth clubs who all 
volunteer their time to develop youth provision and engage in 

community activities, fundraising events and planning weekly.  
 

Green  

2.3 To take a strategic lead across the 
Sector in developing the 
Commissioners Takeover Challenge  
 

 Takeover Challenge took place across the District in November 
2016.  

 Young people provided direction and led on aspects of the takeover 

 A multi disciplinary team of professionals including those with 
responsibility for health services, work experience placements, local 

Green  

P
age 20



 

 

21 

learning establishments, youth work practitioners and the voluntary 
sector worked together to recruit professionals and young people 
and to organise a shared celebration experience.  

2.4 Enable young people to be active 
participants in district wide public 
consultations around services that 
directly impact on young people.  
 

 Young people have  a voice by attending a series of Community 
forums and in the development of 12 week plans within Youth 
Service provisions 

 A number of young people from across the district have attended to 
represent Young people’s voice at Children’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 Young people have actively participated in User surveys and Voter 
registration forms.  

 Young people from across the district in both VCS and Youth 
Service provisions have participated in the feedback on the Bradford 
council budget proposals. 

 Young people from Bradford West have provided feedback on the 
proposal for the new sports facilities in the City. 

Green  

2.5  To develop a Youth Voice Framework 
that is adopted across the sector 
showing pathways for participation.  
 

 Youth Voice Framework developed in partnership with young 
people.  

 Youth Voice Framework adopted as part of Children, Young People 
and Families Plan.  

 Evidence of young people’s participation in District wide youth voice 
events 

 Evidence of young peoples participation in Regional and national 
youth voice initiatives  

Green  

2.6  To ensure that Area Committees when 
considering reports on services that 
directly impact on young people extend 
offers to young people in the area to 
attend and comment  

 Young people involved in Grants Advisory / Community Chest 
applications and recommendations in Constituency areas.  

 Young people attending local Area Committees in all areas to talk 
about their participation with Youth Services and the Youth Offer.  

Green  

 
 
 
 

P
age 21



 

 

22 

3. Open Access 
 

 Action Progress Description RAG Status 

3.1. The council to work more closely with 
Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 
providers to ensure consistent coverage 
and lack of duplication of open access 
opportunities  

 Ward mapping has taken place in all the constituency areas to 
inform the ward plans. 

 Bradford West is leading work with Faith settings seeing partnership 
working with local mosques and Churches in Manningham area. 

 Youth Workers are linking together in locality areas to share and 
plan for the youth offer delivery.  

 
 

Green  
 

3.2 Support local people to become 
volunteers in open access provision and 
take over the provision, enabling staff 
resources to be prioritised on capacity 
building, outreach and addressing 
barriers  

 Summer camps delivered in partnership with private 
   sector (Morrisons, Tescos, M&S, Hanson School, elected   
   members and local volunteer residents) 

 Police summer camps delivery with partner organisations 

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth 
   clubs who all volunteer their time to develop youth    
   provision and engage in community activities, fundraising   
   events and weekly planning.  
 Young volunteers are leading and developing youth 
   provisions, supported by youth workers right across the    
   Youth Sector.  

 

Green   

3.3 Develop a collaborative / partnership 
approaches that support jointly planning 
provision and development of good 
practice to ensure open access activity 
is inclusive and open to all  

 Contributions and the shared working of the Youth Offer Working 
Group  

 Collaborative working between VCS providers working in close 
proximity to each other for example at the Greenwood Centre and 
the Springfield Centre working together to plan delivery and offer a 
more coherent and joined up and progressive offer for young people 
that is responsive to identified needs.  

Green  

3.4 Collaborative work to seek resource and 
use existing resources more effectively 
and innovatively  

 Gardening tools in communities used by young people  

 The bicycle hub in Manningham Park id used District wide. 

 Bradford West also have a smoothie bike which is used in most fun 

Green  
 

P
age 22



 

 

23 

 days across the district.  

 The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award outdoor education kit stores is 
available and used by young people from across the district 
participating in the award.  

 
 

4. Targeted  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

4.1. To support innovation in youth work 
practice  

 

 Realignment of the Youth Work Grant Scheme to support 
developmental and innovative and sustainable models of youth 
work practice 

 Youth Service undertaking Early Help Interventions in locality 
areas using innovative engagement with young people.  

Green  
 

4.2 To consider allocating small amounts of 
funding to groups where there are 
additionality opportunities and increased 
opportunities to access other funding 

 

 Youth Work Grants re sessional 

 In Bradford West £2000 funding received from Sandy Lane 
Parish Council to establish local Youth Provision 

 Grants Advisory Groups working with young people at Area 
Committee levels to influence allocations of community chest 
funding in an area 

 Sharing of funding opportunities (external funding) across the 
Key individuals Network and Young Lives Bradford   

 
Green  

4.3 To reduce duplication and increase 
coordination of activity  

 Identifying CSE Champions within Youth Services  

 In constituency areas youth workers are attending the Multi 
agency panel meetings to establish a seamless service and 
work with young people before being referred to Social Care. 

 All constituency areas  have a named  CSE champion 

 Ward Plans are mapping the provisions in areas to enable / 
reduce duplication  

Green  
 

4.4 Ensure better support to young people 
to enable access to targeted youth 
provision / universal provision 
 

 Summer camps focussed on targeted cohorts of young people in 
transitions in partnership with private sector (Morrison’s, 
Tesco’s, M&S, Hanson school, elected members and local 
volunteer residents) 

Green  
 

P
age 23



 

 

24 

       Bradford West has two Community Alcohol partnership (CAP) 
projects one in City Centre and the other in Clayton. Keighley 
has a Community Alcohol Partnership in Ilkley.  

 Every Childrens home in the district has allocated a youth work 
practitioner who regularly attends the home and supports 
Looked After children in the respective areas.  

 There are provisions that are targeting youth work support to 
groups of girls and Young Women, LGBT young people, 
disabled young people and young people from new migrant 
communities. These provisions give young people safe space to 
explore issues whilst engaging in creative sessions in a safe 
and fun arena.  

 
5. Active Citizens and Young People’s Contribution to Community Life.  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

5.1. Seizing opportunities that challenge 
young people to take social action 

 Developing a Young People Can arm to the People can 
campaign  

 Young people being involved in a wide range of activities 

(www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk). 

 70 Young People from Bradford West planned and delivered 
community clean ups in the ward including; West Royd park 
,Thornton Community Centre , Heaton, Frizinghall Manningham 
and Girlington Over 15  community clean up’s were done  

 10 young people from Thornton participated in the ‘Thornton In 
Bloom, working with local residents to re-pot plants and flowers 
in the area to promote intergenerational work, community 
cohesion and community pride. 

 Bradford West Supports the delivery of the Prince’s trust 12 
week development programme through IAG workshop and 
fundraising 

 
Green 

5.2 Influence and shape provision to 
develop opportunities for active 

 Takeover Challenge Steering Group has 14 members and they 
took on the whole organisation of the district Takeover 

 
Green  

P
age 24

http://www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk/


 

 

25 

engagement and co-production  

Refocus youth work practitioners 
towards ownership for young people to 
become “creators not consumers”  

challenge for 2016  

 82 young people from across the Youth Sector took part in the 
Take over day in 2016 and plans are in place for Take 2 
Takeover 

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford 
West, giving young people volunteering experience working 
along side young people who have a disability.  The project 
aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 We have 12 Junior Parish Council members and 14 young 
people who meet at lower grange on a Tuesday who all 
volunteer there time to develop youth provision and engage in 
community activities, fundraising events and weekly planning. 

5.4 Developing initiatives and projects that 
give opportunities for young people to 
meet other young people from different 
backgrounds to their own.  

 The Youth Service and VCS have developed a range of locality 
based activities that support young people to meet others from 
different backgrounds.  

 Bradford West Youth Service in partnership with Bradford 
Disability Sports and Bradford University, have built a hub of 
accessible bikes for all communities to use, and provision of 
safe cycle activity brings young people together to share 
experiences. .  

 This cycling season has hosted over 20 themed Sky ride local 
events across the district themes include faith rides, women & 
girls, family, festival and inclusions rides all of which are 
supporting. This plays an active role in developing community 
cohesion. 

 Youth sessions weekly at Toller Youth Café and Great Horton 
for EU communities, supporting them to access other 
mainstream provisions and to meet other young people 

 The Youth Service hosts 4 weekly D of E sessions at Culture 
Fusion, Laisterdyke, Parkwood Centre, and in Wharfedale. 
These sessions enable young people to attend from across the 
district and enables the young people to engage in activities 

 
Green  P

age 25



 

 

26 

around team building. Community cohesion. Volunteering and 
inclusion work.  

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford 
West, giving young people volunteering experience working 
along side young people who have a disability.  The project 
aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 Star is an inclusion project in Bradford West which supports 
young people with a disabilities age 11 to 25.  We offer with a 
variety of activities on offer including: pool, table tennis, console 
gaming, Arts & crafts, cooking, DJ work shops,  sports activities 
as well as issue based sessions. These present  opportunities 
to join up with other inclusion sessions and with other provisions 
to broaden the offer  to disabled young people   

 

 
 
 
 

6. Cross Cutting Themes, Quality Assurance and Commissioning  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

6.1 Ensure all Council funded services 
provide: 

 Access to information at a level 
that is right for young people 

 Have youth voice and influence 
as integral parts of service 
delivery  

 More emphasis on active 
citizenship within young people’s 
services 

 Embed the “Foundations of a 

 Young people are actively involved in 12 week plans, 
fundraising in their youth clubs as well planning and budgeting 
for their sessions.  

 The Youth Work Grants have been aligned to the priorities of 
the Youth Offer 

 Quarterly monitoring of delivery of provisions will evidence 
difference made.  

Green  

P
age 26



 

 

27 

new Youth Offer”  
 

6.2 To develop with young people a set of 
common youth work quality standards 
and outcomes that allow self evaluation 
and improvement 
 

 Work has commenced on the development of youth work 
standards aligned to the Youth Offer Key Elements. This is 
planned to be a self evaluation process.  

 External funding has been applied for to support development 
of this work  

 Young people have started to draft the Self Evaluation Quality 
Youth Work Standards and funding has been secured to 
support the VCS participation in shaping this going forward 

 

Green  

6.3 To increase understanding of social 
value within the Youth Sector 
 

 In Bradford West 5 Members of Allerton & Thornton Youth 
Council have worked in partnership with St James church 
members to make rucksacks filled with basic supplies for the 
homeless to promote intergenerational work, community 
cohesion and community pride. 

 Young People are engaging with people can and active 
citizenship activities that are enabling young people to be seen 
more visibly and positively as active contributors in communities  

Green  

6.4  To ensure developments are future 
proofed with regular reviews to ensure 
early identification of emerging needs 
within the Bradford District. 
 

 The Youth Offer Working Group keeps abreast of the changing 
face of youth work delivery. National policy is due to change 
and the local authority youth services and the wider youth 
sector are committed to working together to respond to this.  

 There is a stronger desire to do things differently and to work 
alongside young people to ensure responses are appropriate 

Green  

6.5 Develop pride in the Bradford District  
 

 Community Stars Awards saw young people taking pride in their 
communities  

 Love Bradford Event was embraced by young people with 
schools and young people making up the record breaking 
achievement 

 The Youth Service has a key role in District wide events 
including the City Park based Bradford Festival, Festival of Light 
and Christmas lights.  

Green  

P
age 27



 

 

28 

 Inclusion in the Youth Survey around young peoples feelings of 
pride of the district and where they live  

 Participation in Growing up North initiative.  

6.6 Encourage private companies to invest 
in young people in local areas where 
they are based 
 

 There have been investments made in kind and contributions in 
terms of furniture and staff / volunteering support for a variety of 
youth initiatives including VCS run summer schemes in BD2 
area, Cycling helmets and cycling clothing donations to the 
district wide cycle hub and use of space within the local hotel for 
award and celebration events for the district   

Green 

6.7 Encourage local “giving” to create a 
community fund for young people 
 

 Bradford District Community Fund distributing funding to 
projects to work with children and young people.   

 

6.8  Increase networking and sharing of 
resources across the Youth Sector.  

 Youth Offer Working Group 

 Takeover Challenge Task and Finish Group.  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28



 

 

29 

Appendix B 
 

Youth Voice Framework 
Attached as PDF document 

 
 
 

P
age 29



Bradford Youth Voice Framework

  Youth activity     V
iewpoint

     C
onnexions     A

dvocacy

       
       

       
     P

atie
nt 

       
       

  experie
nce groups

       
       

       
  School Councils

VCS Groups

      C
hild

ren in Care Council

       
Youth Offe

r Activity

      N
eighbourhood work

     H
ealth

, Educatio
n and 

       
       

  Social Care 

       
       

       
Planning

STRATEGY
GROUPS

Children’s Trust 

Bradford 
Safeguarding 

Children Board

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Board

Children’s 
Overview 

and Scrutiny 
Committee

Children’s 
Transformation 

Integration group

Regional structures

Children’s Trust

Social media engagement

Underpinned by Bradford Youth Work – Youth Voice Standards

Young People’s Challenge Panels Young people’s forums /
networks / Youth Voice events

P
age 30



Regional Structures 
These are the opportunities for Bradford’s young people to have their voices 
heard and to influence developments that are further reaching. These may 
be West Yorkshire wide, or within the Yorkshire and Humber Region or the 
development of key initiatives like the Northern Powerhouse. 

The Children’s Trust 
The Trust holds responsibility for the Children, Young People and Families’ 
Plan. The plan has the priorities for our work with children, young people and 
families in the District. One of these priorities is about how our services hear the 
voice of children and young people. They will receive reports from organisations 
and young people and ensure that all the agencies working with the Children’s 
Trust are activity listening and responding to what young people are saying. 
They will involve young people when the plan is reviewed each year. 

Young People’s Challenge Panel(s)
This is a local opportunity for young people to come together to share concerns 
and comments, or to speak directly to adults who make key decisions in relation 
to services for young people. This may be decision makers and budget holders 
within the Council, health or education. It may be those who buy services or 
those who deliver services for young people. 

Young People’s Forums / Networks / Youth Voice Events 
These are forums held locally or for the District on subjects that are identified by 
young people and the district as priorities. These enable young people to come 
together to discuss things that are important to them and to identify actions 
they can take themselves or, where they can, work with others to make things 
better. They are also used to talk about things that may need to be taken to a 
challenge panel for further discussion with key decision makers.  

Bradford Youth Work – Youth Voice Standards
These are the underpinning standards which are being developed that will 
help organisations make a judgement on how good they are at listening 
and responding to young people’s voices. These standards will be used by 
organisations so they are better at supporting young people who use their 
services. They will mean young people have access to a wider range of 
opportunities to have their voices heard.  

Social Media Engagement 
This is a growing opportunity to talk to a wider group of young people in 
the district to seek their views on particular issues or developments. This is 
intended to be used for one-off consultations so we can better understand 
what’s important for young people. Social media will also be used to promote 
the opportunities to attend Youth Forums, be part of a Network or District Youth 
Voice Events. 

For more information 
about the Youth Voice 
Framework, contact 
Heather Wilson, 
Bradford Council’s 
Commissioner for Youth 
Provision.

Email: heather.wilson@
bradford.gov.uk
Tel: 01274 431781
Mob: 07582 100 692

P
age 31



 

 

30 

Appendix C 
 

Growing up North – Feedback from the Commissioner’s Office 
Attached as PDF document 

 

 
 
 
   
 
 
 

P
age 32



Where we visited

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford

Children and young people’s Feedback

Children’s 
homes

Youth Service 
inclusion provision 

Children’s 
centres

SchoolsThe information 
shop

Young people 
leaving care and 

in supported 
accommodation

The Children in 
Care Council 

Youth centres

The Better Start 
project 

The Children’s 
Commissioner spoke 

at the Public Forum for 
Education 

It was very helpful to visit you on 4 & 5 March 2016. We 
wanted to explore your experience of growing up in Bradford 
and hear your suggestions for improvements locally. 

The views and experiences of children and young people 
help us better understand and improve things in Bradford and 
across England.

We would like to thank you for meeting with us. We have 
shared your thoughts and ideas with decision makers in Bradford, including Michael 
Jameson, Strategic Director of Children’s Services. They are looking at how they can use 
what you told us to make a difference where you live, learn and play.

Page 33



What was good

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford
Children and young people’s Feedback

The relationships and support from adults is very important 
and one of the best things about Bradford. 

ÂÂStaff want the best for children and young people and for things to  
    be better

ÂÂYou felt there was someone to talk to if you needed help and the  
    info shop was good

ÂÂ  Young people who have been homeless talked about specialist  
     help with their emotional wellbeing and mental health.

Community, was very important 

ÂÂYou told us there was a strong sense of community among people based on their  
    street, their ethnicity, faith, background or the services they received e.g. from a  
    youth club. 

ÂÂThere is a rich mix of people and you want to better value the diversity of Bradford,  
    the children’s centre semed to be working well at bringing children and  
    communities together.

It feels safer in the summer in Bradford 
ÂÂThere are parks and spaces where you can hang-out, meet 

and have fun with friends 
ÂÂThe Turnaround project was helpful and needed, particularly to 

keep girls safe.
Adults listen to you

ÂÂYou often felt listened to and heard by adults about your  
    own care or support, who then try to make a difference.

Valuing opportunities

ÂÂYou value any opportunities, places to go and help that 
Bradford provides.

“He’s like the dad 
I never had  

but all the staff 
are good”

“[Best thing about Bradford]I like the diversity of Bradford there are lots of 
different races and ethnicities”

‘It’s important to have people who just get you but some people are shy and 
need help to say what they want and how they feel’.

Page 34



What you were worried about or could be improved

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford
Children and young people’s Feedback

Community can sometimes feel limited and you felt they 
sometimes divided and excluded people 

ÂÂSome groups (around streets, neighbourhoods, gender, race,  
    faith but also things like dress and appearance) feel isolated and  
    separate to the wider community.

ÂÂYou wanted to get to know people who seemed different or were  
    from different backgrounds but needed more help to do this, you  
    wanted adults to get this.

Some children in children’s homes 

ÂÂWere worried about homelessness and that it could happen to anyone
ÂÂSome girls and young women were worried about being safe on the street
ÂÂThe police were called too often to sort out small things.

All the young people we met over 16 wanted more 
opportunities and jobs so that they could feel proud and 
stay in Bradford.

You wanted to share your views and be taken seriously 
across a range of subjects, such as education, leisure,  
transport, jobs and so help improve children and young  
people’s lives. 

Safety was a key issue

ÂÂ It can feel very unsafe when it is dark. There were several experiences that  
    worried you and made you feel unsafe, like feeling threatended or mugged

ÂÂThere is not much to do which can lead to young people getting into trouble.

“The police are called all the time for nothing…like parents wouldn’t call 
the police for something like [that]”

“Diversity is our strength but also our struggle”

“They all wear trackies and trainers and go about together...they smash windows and run off because 
there is nothing to do”

“If we are all mixed 
up more in all 

different places 
doing thing together, 

would be better”

Thank you for sharing your experiences  
of life in Bradford!Page 35



 

 

31 

Appendix D 

Young Peoples Survey 2016 

East response, actions and future plans 

The youth work team completed 332 surveys with young people   

Survey Question  East Response 

Who feel pride in their local area  
 

41% 

Who are proud to be from Bradford district  
 

52% 

 
Young People commented that key factors contributing to their feelings about the Bradford 
district is the negative media coverage.   They  also expressed that the amount of litter in 
their locality influenced their level pride in the area 
 
Actions 
 

 Over a dozen clean ups and litter picks have taken place across the wards. Youth 
workers have teamed up with Neighbourhood Support staff & NCS to carry out litter 
picks and all wards engaged in the Big British Clean-up.   

  

 All youth sessions took part in the Proud to be Yorkshire quiz. 
 

 Young people have engaged in district wide events in City Park such as Bradford 
Festival, Wellbeing and city cycling as well as the annual boat race in Saltaire. 
 

 Young people have participated in the Growing up North consultation from the 

Children Commissioner’s Office about young people’s aspirations. 

 Young people have participated in two celebration events. The first with a Bradford 

East focus, the second a district wide event where young people presented their 

experiences and achievements to local councillors, officers and partners. 

 

 Hosted a group of young people from Manchester and took them to Saltaire, the 

Science and Media Museum and enjoyed the Tour De Yorkshire in City Park. 

 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue dialogue with young people about thoughts on improving the area. 

 Continue to carry out clean ups & litter picks. 

 Continue to engage young people in opportunities & events across the District. 
 
 

Page 36



 

 

32 

Survey Question  East Response 

Who feel safe in their area during the day 
 

83% 

Who feel safe in their area when it’s late & dark 
 

51% 

 
The majority of the young people who felt unsafe were young women who were fearful of 
men in cars after dark. A handful of LGBT young people and new arrivals felt unsafe both at 
night and during the day. 
 
Actions 
 

 Sessions with young people about hate crime & hate crime reporting have taken 
place across the wards. 
 

 Single gender work has taken place about how to keep safe & behaviour. 
 

 Vulnerable young people have met with West Yorkshire Police to share their 

concerns and engage in information sessions about staying safe, as well as 

participating in a police poster consultation about CSE. 

 Sessions have taken place for BAME LGBT young people around positive identity, 

internet safety and support services. 

 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue to raise awareness about personal safety. 
 

 Continue to develop single gender work with a focus on staying safe. 

 

Survey Question  East Response 

Who believe adults respect young people 
 

53% 

Who believe they can influence decisions about 
their local area 
 

27% 

 

Some young people felt that they were unsure about the impact their contribution had in 

adult arenas. More worrying was the low percentage of young people who believed they 

could influence decisions about their local area. 

Actions 
 

 Young people have engaged in workshops around rights and responsibilities, and 
democratic processes and how to engage. 
 

Page 37



 

 

33 

 347 young people have registered to vote. 
 

 Consultations have taken place with young people to help shape service delivery. 
Outcomes have included change of day & time of sessions, the splitting of age 
groups and setting up of junior clubs.  
 

 Young people have engaged in the youth voice framework and participated in the 
following consultations:  
 

 District Plan  - young people’s top 10 priorities  

 IAG AP 

 Public Education Forum 

 West Yorkshire Police Consultation on CSE posters  

 Growing up North – Young People’s Aspirations  

 Interview panels for the Safeguarding lead and head of social work team. 
 

 Young people from across the wards participated in national Take over day and one 
young person shadowed the Chief Executive Kersten England  
 

 Young people have taken part in the Early Years Consultation and the Health Watch 
Consultation. 
 

 Coaching of young people at the Hindu Cultural Society in setting up a young 

people’s council. 

 Launch of Phoenix Youth Group to give Trans youth a voice. 

 Sessions around civic life and citizenship have taken place - youth clubs to seek out 

young people who are interested in establishing forums. 

 One young person is an observer on the Children’s and Young Peoples Scrutiny 

committee. 

 One young woman was a panel member for the WOW (Women of the World event). 

 

 
Future plans  
 

 Set up an East wide youth voice group  
 

 Work in partnership with Springfield to set up a local youth forum which  enables 

young people to understand and engage in  decision-making processes. 

 Continue to engage young people with sessions around rights and responsibilities, 

and decision making processes. 

 Continue to use the youth voice framework to engage young people in consultations 

and decision- making opportunities. 

Page 38



 

 

34 

Survey Question  East Response 

Who believe people from different backgrounds 
generally get on well in their area 
 

48% 

 

Young people felt they needed more opportunities to mix with people from different 

backgrounds.  

Actions 
 

Young people from across East were given the following opportunities to engage in activities 

and events: 

 IDAHOBIT (International  Day Against Homophobia, Bi phobia and Trans Phobia )- 

young people spent an evening listening to the stories and experiences of LGBT 

people and music and entertainment. 

 Love Actually – Workshops were run across all wards about love. The question 

posed to young people was, what is love? Each ward created a picture of love on a 

jigsaw piece which then formed into the shape of a three foot heart. The pieces all 

came together during valentine’s week where a film night was held at the Laisterdyke 

Centre. 

 WOW (Women of the World event) young women took part in the WOW event where 
they attended a range of workshops with young women from across the district. 
 

 World Christmas Party -The Greenwood Centre hosted a World Christmas Party 
where each ward turned up bringing traditional Christmas food from across the world. 
 

 Phoenix Nights  -  Phoenix youth group hosted a xmas party for young people from 
across the district. 
 

 Out to Play – young people from across East attend a play at the Bradford 
Playhouse about the challenges of LGBT people coming out. 
 

 Football competitions – two football competitions were run at Ravenscliffe and 
Karmand Centre bringing young people from across the district together. 
 

 Afternoon Tea - Young people from the Little Horton area invited residents from the 
Mary Seacole residence to join them for afternoon tea which they had prepared. 
 

 Christmas Gifts -  Young people from Ravenscliffe made handmade gifts to give out 
to older people in the neighbourhood. 

 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue to have dialogue with young people. 
 

Page 39



 

 

35 

 Continue to take up district wide opportunities. 
 

 Continue to set up opportunities for young people to mix in the East ward. 
 
 

Survey Question  East Response 

Provision & Engagement  
Who pursue their interest & hobbies at school 
 

53% 

Who pursue their interests & hobbies outside of school 
 

91% 

Who have attended a youth provision in the last 12 months 
 

82% 

Who believe there are plenty of things to do in their area 
 

40% 

 
A high percentage of young people felt that they were able to pursue interests & hobbies 
outside of school and attended youth provision in the last 12 months. A much lower 
percentage felt that there was not enough to do in the area or able to pursue interests and 
hobbies within school. 
 
Actions 
 

 All wards have held sessions with young people about activities and provision they 
would like to see organised. Outcomes have included community fun days, 
opportunity to volunteer with junior youth clubs which have been set up, education, 
employment and training drop-ins, sexual health drop-ins, emotional support drop- 
ins and residentials. 
 

 Young people in all wards have had the opportunity to contribute to quarterly session 
plans.  
 

 Drama projects have been set up in partnership with Arts Works and Freedom 
Studios and they have performed their work locally. 
 

 Young people have been given the opportunity to attend District wide events such as 
Tour de Yorkshire, Dragon Boat Race, Bradford Festival, WOW etc. 

 
 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue to have open dialogue with young people. 
 

 Continue to take up opportunities across the district. 
 

 Continue to seek partnerships across the district which give young people a more 
diverse range of services and opportunities.  
 
 

Survey Question  East Response 

Page 40



 

 

36 

Who would be interested in getting involved in 
projects in their local area 
 

54% 

Who would be interested in volunteering 56% 

 
In discussions with young people they felt they wanted more opportunities to volunteer and 
training which would support their journey into employment. 
 
 
Actions 
 

 Two volunteer training courses have been delivered. 
 

 Three young volunteers have undertaken the Youth Work qualification. 
 

 Four Young people have gone on to secure posts as casual youth workers with the 
youth service. 
 

 One young person was shortlisted for the community stars award. 
 

 Young people at Ravenscliffe have set up and run a community library for their 
peers. 
 

 Junior clubs have been set up with Laisterdyke and Ravenscliffe giving young people 
the opportunity to volunteer. 
 

 Young people have been encouraged to join the NCS programmes. 
 

 Young people have volunteered at events such as community fun days, clean ups, 
and a range of fund raising events / activities.  

 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue to run volunteer training sessions. 
 

 Continue to support young volunteers development. 
 

 Continue to create volunteering opportunities. 
 

Survey Question  East Response 

Who believe they have access to information on 
job opportunities 
 

56% 

Who believe they have access to information on 
contraception, sexual health services & 
relationships 
 

47% 

Page 41



 

 

37 

Who believe they have access to information on 
nutrition & diet 

56% 

Who believe they have access to information on 
sports & physical activities 
 

78% 

Who believe they have access to information on 
emotional support 

49% 

 
The majority of young people felt there was a need for more  IAG across the board with 
sports and physical activity the exception. 
 
Actions  
 

 Little Horton - set up a weekly education, employment and training session. 
 

 Bradford Moor - teamed up with the library to give young people a weekly slot for 
support with CV writing and education, employment and training opportunities. 
 

 Idle and Thackley - have set up an information board and coach young people to 
access the virtual connexions and College prospectus.  
 

 Eccleshill -- arranged drop-ins in partnership with Connexions. 
 

 Youth workers have teamed up with InCommunities to give young people the 
opportunity to participate in construction taster courses. 
 

 The HALE project has been invited in to open access sessions enabling a drop-in 
service around sexual health. 
 

 Sessions have been held for young parents at Springfield. 
 

 A range of healthy eating courses have taken place. 
 

 Keep fit / sports sessions have taken place across the wards.  
 

 A partnership has been developed with Activate giving young people further 
opportunities to sports and physical activities.  
 

 Twelve week emotional wellbeing sessions have taken place for young women in 
Bradford Moor. 
 

 Time to talk drop in has been set up in Little Horton. 
 

 Time to talk continues to run two days a week in Hanson school. 
 

 Body positivity sessions have taken place across the wards. 
 

 Girls’ night-in and boys’ night-in take place in Eccleshill and Idle Thackley. The 

Page 42



 

 

38 

programme is themed around health and wellbeing. 
 

 Sweet Wrappers – an emotional wellbeing being group runs on a weekly basis. 
 

 All youth workers have undertaken the Signs of Safety training.  
 

 A youth worker has undertaken the Wrap training in order to deliver a Wrap course 
later in the year. 
 

 Referrals are taken from the Buddy scheme, CSE Hub, Early Help Panel and 
Gateway. 
 

 All youth workers carry a one to one case load. 
 
 

Future plans  
 
 

 Encourage young people to down load the IAG App once launched. 
 

 Work in partnership with the Youth in Mind Initiative to deliver a Wrap course for 
young people.  
 

 Continue to use a range of methods offering young people IAG. 
 

 Continue to run the weekly Sweet Wrappers session. 
 

 Continue to take on one to one referrals & support young people.  
 

 

Survey Question  East Response 

Who believe there is a problem with young 
people hanging around in groups 
 

56% 

Who believe there is a problem with litter & 
rubbish 
 

66% 

Who believe there is a problem with drug dealing 
 

48% 

Who believe there is a problem with people under 
the influence of alcohol 
 

38% 

Who believe there is a problem with vandalism 
 

49% 

Who believe there is a problem with anti-social 
behaviour 
 

50% 

 
Young people recognised that anti-social behaviour was an issue and needed to be 
addressed 
 

Page 43



 

 

39 

Actions  
 

 Sessions around rights & responsibilities have taken place across the wards. 
 

 All wards participated in the Great British Clean Up. Alongside this over a dozen 
clean-ups have taken place. 
 

 Sessions on designing littering posters have taken place with posters being displayed 
at community events and in local areas. 
 

 Sessions have been run around the impact and consequences of drug and alcohol 
use. 
 

 Sessions on the consequences of anti-social behaviour have been run.  
 

 Two residentials targeting young people known to the police with a history of anti-
social behaviour have taken place.  
 

 Youth workers have responded to requests from Councillors and the police to carry 
out detached work in hot spot areas. 
 

 Partnership work with the Big Swing to target young people known by the police who 
are NEET into a weekly programme of activities. 

 
 

 
Future plans  
 

 Continue to have dialogue with young people and plan with them activities which can 
address ASB. 
 

 Continue to target known young people and make interventions. 
 

 Continue to run sessions around rights and responsibilities. 
 

 Continue to work alongside partners to address issues of ASB. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

40 

Appendix E 
 

Profile of Provision – Bradford East  
 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Little Horton………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, 
Council 
Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed 
at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

 
Open access 
 

Youth 
service  
Canterbury 
Youth Club 

 
All young 
people 

 
Weekly 

 
Tuesday 6.00 
- 8.30 p.m. 

 
Sharon 
Osoba 

 
Open access 
 

Youth 
service  
Canterbury 
Youth Club 

 
All young 
people 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 
6.00 – 8.30 
p.m. 
 

 
Sharon 
Osoba 

 
Sports 
related youth 
work – aimed 
at increasing 
youth and 
fitness 
 

Youth 
service  
Parkside 
Youth 
Centre, West 
Bowling 

 
All young 
people 

 
Weekly 

 
Saturday – 
10.00 – 
12.30p.m. 

 
Gurm 
Chand 

 
After school 
provision for 
young 
people 

 
One in a 
Million Kids 
Club – The 
Arc, 
Canterbury 
Youth Club 
 

 
All young 
people - 
aged 5 – 11 
years 

 
Four days a 
week 

 
Monday, 
Tuesday, 
Wednesday 
and Thursday 
– 3.30 – 5.00 
p.m. 

 
Sharon 
Osoba 

Targeted 
session 
young 
people aged 
13 – 25 
years with 
disabilities 

Youth 
service  
Parkside 
Youth Centre 

 
 
Young 
people aged 
13 – 25 
years 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 
6.00 – 9.00 
p.m. 

 
Anthony 
Casson 

Page 45



 

 

41 

 
Open access 
– young 
people aged 
11 – 20 
years 

 
St Stephens 
Church, 
West 
Bowling 

 
Emerge 
Youth 
Sessions - 
young 
people aged 
11 - 20 years 

 
Twice weekly 

 
Tuesday and 
Friday – 7.00 
– 9.00 p.m. 

 
Emerge 

 
Open access 
– West 
Bowling, 
BD5 

 
Light of the 
Word 
 
 

 
young 
people aged 
8 – 19 years 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 
6.00 – 9.00 
p.m. Youth 
Club 

 
Light of the 
world  

 
West 
Bowling, 
BD5 

 
Phab Club – 
MAPA 
 

 
Targeted 
youth 
session – 11 
– 25 years 
with 
disabilities 

 
Weekly 

 
Wednesday  
- 7.00 – 8.30 
p.m. 

Phab Club – 
MAPA 
 

 
Canterbury 
Children’s 
Centre 

 
Cecil Green 
Arts 

 
Delivering 
arts and craft 
sessions – 
whole 
community 

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday  
6-8pm 

Cecil Green 
Arts 

 
Boxing 
Sessions, 
 

 
Healthy 
Lifestyles 
Project, 
Huggies 
Gym 

 
Young 
people aged 
13-19 year 
old 

 
Weekly 

 
Tuesday – 
6.00 – 8.00 
p.m. 

 
Huggies 
Gym 

  
Private after 
school care – 
young 
people 5- 16 
year olds 

 
I-Inspire after 
school club - 
Parkside, 
West 
Bowling 

 
Young 
people aged 
5 – 16 year 
old 

 
Weekly 

 
Monday – 
Friday 3.00 – 
5.00 p.m. 

I-Inspire 
after school 
club - 
Parkside, 
West 
Bowling 

 
Secondary 
schools and 
targeting 
asylum 
seekers 

 
Homework 
Club Plus – 
Park Lane 
Centre, West 
Bowling 

 
Young 
people 

 
Weekly 

 
Saturday 
2.00 – 3.30 
p.m 

Homework 
Club Plus – 
Park Lane 
Centre, 
West 
Bowling 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 

42 

Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Bowling and Barkerend………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who 
aimed 
at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls 
group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. 
weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

  
Open access 

Youth service  
Karmand Centre  

  
All young 
people 

 
Weekly  

 
Monday – 
5.15 – 8.15 
p.m.  

  
Onkar 
Singh 

Carlton 
Bolling 
Boxing 
academy  

Carlton Bolling  All young 
people 

weekly Monday & 
Thursdays  

Carlton 
Bolling  

  
Street 
Contacts, 
home visits, 
holiday 
activities 
 

Youth service  
Outreach/detached 
– Hustler Street, 
Prospect Road and 
Paley Road 

  
All young 
people 

 
Twice 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday 
& Fridays 
6.00 – 9.00 
p.m.  

 
Onkar 
Singh 

  
  
Football for 
Girls – 13 – 
16 years 
 

  
 
Karmand Centre  

  
Girls 
group 

 
Weekly  

 
Monday 4.30 
– 6.00 p.m.  

Karmand 
Centre 

  
Boxing – 
mixed aged 
8+ 

 
Karmand Centre  

 
All young 
people  

 
Three times 
a week  

 
Mon, Tues 
and Thurs – 
4.30 – 6.30 
p.m.  

Karmand 
Centre 

  
Karate – 
mixed – age 
5+ 

 
Karmand Centre  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday 
– 7.00 – 8.30 
p.m.  

Karmand 
Centre 

  
Akido/MMA 
Mixed – 
aged 10+ 

 
Karmand Centre  
 

  
All young 
people 

 
Weekly 

 
Wednesday 
– 7.00 – 9.00 
p.m.  

 
Karmand 
Centre 

  
11 – 24 age 

 
E-merge, 18 

 
All young 

 
Twice 

 
Tues and 

 
Emerge  

Page 47



 

 

43 

range of 
activities 

Pawson Street, 
BD4 8BY  
 

people weekly  Weds – 5.45 
– 7.45 p.m.1  

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward…… Bolton and Undercliffe………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, 
Council 
Youth 
Service etc) 

Who 
aimed at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

  
Open 
access 

Youth service  
Greenwood 
Centre – 
Open access 
youth club – 
age 11 - 19  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesdays 
– 6.30 – 8.30 
p.m.  

  
Stacey 
Tolley  

  
Open 
access 

  
SORTED2 
Youth club 

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly (term 
time only)  

 
Friday (term 
time only) – 
6.45 – 8.45 
p.m.  

 Stacey 
Tolley 

  
  
Planning 
Group for 
SORTED 2 
– 15 – 25 
years  

 
  
SORTED 3 
faith based 
youth 
provision, 
Bolton Villas 
church hall 

 
 
All young 
people  

 
 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 
6.00 – 9.00 
p.m.  

Sorted 
Church 

 
Faith based 
youth 
provision – 
all ages 
 

 
Abundant Life 
youth 
program – 
Abundant Life 
Centre  

 
All young 
people  

 
Twice weekly  

 
Sunday – 
10.30 – 5.00 
p.m. 
Friday – 7.00 
– 9.00 p.m.   

Abundant 
Life  

  
Ages 5 - 8 

One in a 
Million junior 
youth club, 
Greenwood 
Centre, Wood 
Lane  

  
All young 
people 

 
Weekly  

 
Friday – 3.15 
– 5.00 p.m.  

One in 
aMilion 

Page 48



 

 

44 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Bradford Moor………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol 
org name, 
Council 
Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed 
at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. 
weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Open 
access 
 

Youth 
service  
Laisterdyke 
Youth Club  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday 6.45 
– 9.15 p.m.  

  
Sab Ghazi 

  
Open 
access 

Youth 
service  
Laisterdyke 
Juniors  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday – 
4.00 – 6.00 
p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

  
Targeted  

Youth 
service & 
Barnardos 
WRAP  

 
One to one 
referral  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday  
4.30 -6.30pm  

 
Phil Kitson 

  
Open 
access 

Youth 
service  
Laisterdyke 
Youth Club  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Thursday 4.45 
– 7.15 p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

 
Open 
access  

Youth 
service  
Laisterdyke 
Youth Club  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  
 

 
Friday – 6.45 – 
9.15 p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

  
Power Girls 

Youth 
service  
Womens 
Zone 

 
Girls group  

 
Weekly  

  
Tuesday – 
6.00 – 9.00 
p.m.  

 Taira 
Shah 

 
Open 
Access  

 
Thornbury 
Youth and 
Community 
Centre, 16 
Lower 
Rushton 
Road, 
Bradford, 
BD3 8PX  

  
All young 
males 

 
Twice 
weekly  

 
Monday – 5.30 
– 8.00 p.m. 
Friday – 5.00 – 
7.30 p.m.  

 
Thornbury 
Centre  

Page 49



 

 

45 

Open age – 
Eastern 
European 
(Young and 
old LACO 
project) 

  
Thornbury 
Centre, 79 
Leeds Old 
Road, 
Bradford, 
BD3 8JX 

  
All young 
people 

 
Twice 
weekly  

 
Monday – 4.00 
– 6.00 p.m. 
Wednesday – 
4.00 – 6.00 
p.m.  

 
Thornbury 
Centre  

  
Girls group  
 
Talent 
match 
Run 
throughout 
the week 
 
 

 
 
Women 
Zone, 19-21 
Hubert 
Street, 
Bradford, 
BD3 9TE  
 
 
  

 
 
Girls/Women’s 
group 
  

 
 
Weekly 

 
 
Tuesday 1.00 
– 3.00 p.m. 
 

 
  
 
 
Womens 
Zone  

11 – 14 
years – 
Female 
8 – 19 
years – 
Male and 
female 
 

E-merge, 18 
Pawson 
Street, 
Bradford, 
BD3 9LS 
 

  
Mixed 

Weekly Wednesday – 
6.30 – 8.30 
p.m. (Female_ 
Friday – 5.30 – 
8.30 p.m. 
(Male/Female) 

E merge  

Hindu Kids 
Club – 6-11 
years – 
Male and 
Female 

Hindu 
Cultural 
Society of 
Bradford 
341 Leeds 
Road, 
Bradford, 
BD3 9LS   

  
 

  
Monthly 

1st Sunday of 
each month – 
5.30 – 8.30 
p.m. 

 
Hindu 
Cultural 
society  

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Eccleshill………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, 
Council 
Youth 
Service etc) 

Who 
aimed at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

Page 50



 

 

46 

Open 
access age 
– 11+ 
 

Youth service  
Ravenscliffe 
Youth Centre  

All young 
people  

Twice weekly  Tuesday 6.30 
– 9.30 p.m. 
Friday 6.00 – 
9.00 p.m.  

 Nicky 
Lannen 

Detached 
/Project – 
targeted 
work (age 
11+) 
working with 
identified 
young 
people, 
sports, arts 
and issue 
based 
sessions 

Youth service  
Eccleshill 
Ward 
Detached / 
Project Work 

All young 
people  

Weekly  Wednesdays 
5.30 -8.30pm  

 Nicky 
Lannen 

  
Junior Youth 
Club – ages 
8 – 11 years 
– play, 
sports and 
arts and 
crafts 

Youth service  
Ravenscliffe 
Youth Centre  

 
All young 
people 

  
Weekly 

  
Monday 5.30 – 
8.30 p.m. 

 
Nicky 
Lannen 

Open 
access 

SNOOP & 
youth service 

Young 
people with 
disability 

weekly Mondays  5.30 
-8.30  

SNOOP  

Play 
sessions – 
ages 5 –13 
Family Day 

The Big Swing 
@ Eccleshill 
Adventure 
Playground 

All young 
people 

Four days a 
week 
 
 
Weekly 

Tuesday – 
Friday 3.30 – 
6.30 p.m. (play 
sessions) 
Saturday – 
12.00 – 3.00 
p.m. (Family 
day 

Big Swing  

8 - 13  
 

Rockwell 
Centre Junior 
Youth Club – 
(Eccleshill 
ward but very 
close)  

All young 
people 

Weekly  Tuesday 4.00 
– 6.00 p.m.  

Rockwell 
centre  

8 - 13  
 

Rockwell 
Centre Junior 
Gardner’s – 
Eccleshill 
ward but (very 
close) 

All young 
people 

Weekly Wednesday 
4.00 – 6.00 
p.m. 

Rockwell 
centre  

Page 51



 

 

47 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Idle and Thackley………………. 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who 
aimed at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls 
group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

Play, sports, 
arts for 5 – 
12 year olds 

Youth service 
& Springfield 
 
Junior Youth 
Club  

All young 
people  

Twice weekly  Wednesday 
and Fri – 
4.30–6.30 
p.m.  

 Taira Shah/ 
Helena 
Rhodes 

  
Homework 
support, 
literacy and 
creative 
writing, 
health and 
wellbeing, 
school years 
6+ 

Youth service 
& Springfield 
Intermediates 
Club  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday 
6.45 – 8.15 
p.m.  

 Taira Shah 

  
Open access 

Youth service  
Senior Youth 
Club  

 
All young 
people  

 
Weekly  

 
Friday – 7.30 
– 9.30 p.m.  

 
Helena 
Rhodes 

  
Junior club  

Rockwell 
Centre Junior 
Youth Club – 
(Eccleshill 
ward but very 
close) 
  

  
All young 
people 

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday 4.00 
– 6.00 p.m.  

Rockwell 
Centre  

  
Junior 
gardeners  

Rockwell 
Centre Junior 
Gardner’s – 
(Eccleshill 
ward but very 
close) 
 

  
All young 
people 

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 
4.00 – 6.00 
p.m.  

Rockwell 
centre  

 
Boxing  

 
Platinum 

 
All young 

 
Four times a  

 
Monday – 

Springfield  

Page 52



 

 

48 

 Boxing (very 
small fee for 
entry)  

people  week  Thursday 
5.00 – 7.00 
p.m. 

 
 
East Area & District wide  
 
 

Offer/ 
activity  
(for 
example 
open 
access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, 
Council 
Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed 
at?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, 
girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

Drop In  Youth service  
Sound  

LGBT 
young 
people  

Weekly Mondays 6-
9pm 

Phil Kitson 

Drop In  Youth service 
& Equity 
Partnership 
 
Phoenix  

Trans 
young 
people 

Bi weekly Wednesdays 
6-9pm 

Norrina 
Rashid 

Project work  Youth service  
Colours youth 
Movement 
(CYM) 

BAME 
LGBT 
young 
people  

Bi Monthly Agreed Bi 
monthly 

Norrina 
Rashid 

Closed 
group 

Youth service  
R Space  

One to one 
referrals 

Weekly Fridays 4-6pm Phil Kitson  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

 

49 

Appendix F –  Examples of VCFS contributions under the key elements of the Youth 
Offer  

 
 

Examples of VCS contributions to the Youth Offer: some 
examples 
 
There are a wide range of different voluntary, community and faith providers that provide 
activities and support for young people in the district. These include 
 

 Activity to support particular interests (arts, drama, junior sports clubs)  

 Alternative education providers  

 Play and adventurous activities (e.g. Big Swing / Eccleshill Adventure playground, Forest 
Schools network,  

 Specialist support (e.g. mental health, counselling) 

 Uniformed organisations (scouts, Guides, Cadets, Boys/Girls Brigade) and similar 
(Woodcraft Folk) 

 Faith based provision hosted by churches, mosques, gurdwaras, temples, or faith inspired 
organisations 

 
Some organisations operate on a very local basis and others on a district wide basis. 
Young Lives supports them with information and guidance and signposts them, to sources 
of support.  

 
There an estimated 200+ organisations that contribute to the youth offer in some way, 
Here are just a few examples of their activities – the majority of the activities listed below 
are predominantly or fully funded from sources other than the Council, although in some 
cases a small amount of Council funding has enabled the leveraging of much greater 
external funding).  This paper gives a few examples (predominantly of district wide 
provision) and how they contribute to the youth offer.  

 

1. Information and Advice 
 16-2-25 advice service runs 5 session per week, 3 at culture fusion and 2 from Shipley 

youth café. They mainly advise around homelessness, housing, welfare benefits and debt 
and see on average between 25 and 30 young people a week on a drop in basis. They 
refer and signpost to all relevant organisations in the area, as well as working closely with, 
leaving care service , youth service, Bradford college amongst other young peoples  
services. This is supported through lottery and trust funding. 

 

 BYDP: IAG does not have to be a separate service. BYDP describes how it embeds IAG 
within its wider offer. “we do  not provide IAG as a service. However, staff  provide IAG 

Page 54



 

 

50 

support frequently in conversation with young people engaging on programmes. Typically 
this involves support for ‘making appropriate choices’ which may include behaviour with 
younger people and support for courses and work with older people.” 

 

2. Voice and Influence  
 Young Lives Bradford survey of organisations in 2016 indicated: 

o 81% of organisations involve young people in the governance of their organisation 
o 96% of organisations involve young people in  Planning the  activities and priorities 

of their organisation 
o 68% involve young people in the recruitment of staff  
o 88 % involve you8ng people in the running of activities (e.g. as volunteers)  

2017 data is currently being collected.  

 
 Barnardos undertake a significant amount of work supporting young people to have their 

voice heard, especially on mental health issues 

 
 Centrepoint runs a youth council, to gather views of young people and influence change 

 
 Emerge run youth councils operating in both BD4 and BD3, 8 – 10 YP involved in each, 

engaging with influencing their provision and local issues 
 

 Brathay: currently deliver a project “Have your voice” to young offenders which works with 
small numbers of young offenders who are in the system and who have been in the system 
to establish a core group of young people to take part in consultation of their experience of 
being involved with the Youth Offending Team, identify what it was like having received a 
service from the YOT, which has increased confidence and self-esteem and helped the 
young people feel empowered that their voice is valued.  

 
 BYDP: hosted the spotlight events held in Bradford to engage young people with decision 

makers. BYDP carries out research activities to understand the concerns of young 
people..BYDP, in partnership with BMDC, is leading a Government (Communities Fund) 
project working with four long standing voluntary sector organisations in BD3, 5 and 8. The 
project will identify and meet unmet needs of 8-25 year olds in these communities. Partners 
will build their capacity and skills to attract more funding to the city.  

 

3. Open Access  
 Uniformed groups: Uniformed groups provide a range of open access activities. Foer 

example Bradford Sea Cadets offer “Youth development and lifelong learning.  Through 
leadership, teamwork, friendship and self-belief the Sea Cadets help young people find 
their sense of direction: we broaden horizons and create possibilities with the aim of 
helping young people see the world through new eyes and with new confidence.” 66% of 
cadets said that attending Sea Cadets improved their attendance and engagement in 
school;  93% said it helped them gain qualifications; 94% said it provided them with the 
skills they need in later life; 88% said it will help them get a job. Their work is funded by 
subscriptions and local donations and volunteer activity.  

 
 Emerge runs a total of 28 open access sessions of youth work each week across the 

following areas (Brierley – 7 sessions per week; West Bowling – 2; East Bowling – 6; 
Windhill – 4; Undercliffe – 4; Laisterdyke – 3; Holme Wood – 2). These sessions have a 
range of content from detached work, tradition drop in youth sessions, sports sessions, 
music sessions, arts and crafts and cohesion initiatives. Most groups are for 11+ young 

Page 55



 

 

51 

people, but a couple are children’s sessions. They are all run in partnership with a local 
group providing a venue (e.g. Bierley Community Centre, Community Works in Undercliffe), 
and funding comes from a range of local sources and large and small national funders. 

 
 JAMES: Have been awarded doorstep sports funding from street games. This funds open 

access football sessions 3 evenings per week and pays for the hire of centres for 2 of those 
sessions. They also have a partnership with Bradford park avenue funded through the 
football association. JAMES has  been delivering homeless football and work in schools as 
well as tournaments and drop ins at bradford park avenue grounds. 

 
 Forest Schools: There is a range of Forest School provision including from Get out more 

CIC to provide adventurous and educational activities outside.  

 
 

4. Targeted Provision  
 Brathay  offer Saturday provision to young offenders who are on ISS orders, cook & eat, 

music, targeted interventions, and sports activities. They also offer CSE Awareness – 
funded through the PCC and Brathay Bursaries to deliver sessions around cyber bullying, 
social media, keeping yourself safe, its ok to talk, these sessions have been delivered to 
primary/secondary schools. They also offer tenancy ready programme – funded through 
Trust funds brought in through fundraising  to deliver skills around independent living skills 
to 15-18 years to develop their skills of living on their own,  

 
 BYDP has a specialism in social, emotional and behavioural support through its youth work 

and has been successful in gaining funding for activities that target those most in need. 
BYDP has a strong local community presence which significantly enhances its impact and 
engagement with harder-to-reach families. Our Youth Ambitions project based in 
Manningham (BMDC funding) is developing older pupil’s to take leadership responsibility. 
BYDP is funding 18 Year 12 students at Oasis Lister Park to complete the Level 2 Youth 
Work Practice accreditation. This investment seeks to ensure a growing base of skilled 
volunteers and potential workers in the city. BYDP has just started the 3 year Youth Start 
programme (funded by BBC Children In Need). Activities around the city will focus on 
young people aged 8-18 and provide opportunities to experience and develop new skills, 
work together and increase inclusion, build resilience, self confidence and capacity to be 
effective citizens.  

 
 Emerge: Runs a range of targeted groups in each of the above areas including some girls 

only small groups and healthy lifestyle groups, along with a couple of faith based groups in 
partnership with local churches. They also run regular Sports Leader awards for young 
people and partners with schools to deliver interventions with individuals and groups as 
required. 

 
 Snoop:  Provides day time and evening services and activities, including holiday schemes, 

with a focus on life/independence and social skills for young adults with learning disabilities.  
They support young adults through the transition from special school into adulthood and 
support them to identify their own person goals and targets to help them gain the 
confidence they need to become more independent, make choices and take more control 
of their own lives in a person centred approach.  In addition they are a registered provider 
of ASDAN accredited awards for ‘Towards Independence’ and their young adults manage 
the Bradford Safe Place Scheme, known as the ‘Help I’m Lost Card Scheme’. 

 

Page 56



 

 

52 

 Dance United Yorkshire: Provides Specialist high-quality arts intervention working with 
some of the most vulnerable and disengaged children and young people across Bradford 
and Yorkshire. Bespoke intensive and short term projects are delivered to predominantly 12 
– 21yr olds referred from a range of services across the city in order to provoke sustainable 
and life-long change. DUY offers a unique arts experience which has a track record of 
transforming the lives of young people who are living on the margins of society.  

 
 Springfield Community Centre has secured £8500.00 from big lottery to provide free 

 meals and deliver healthy eating and nutrition workshops/sessions to young people in 
BD10/2 throughout the summer holidays addressing again the poverty experience by the 
most disadvantaged young people.  

 
 
5. Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life  

 Brathay Trust deliver through Princes Trust programme, Team and Community challenges 
where young people go out and work with communities i.e. producing films around 
Refugees and their struggle and what its like to be a refugee, painted houses and tidying 
up gardens, producing packs to be given out on mental health awareness and where young 
people can be sign posted to, delivered a programme to people suffering from dementia, 
delivering fun activities and story time, and clean up campaigns.  Young people also 
fundraise in order to carry out the community activities.  This is part of their Princes Trust 
experience. 
 

 Emerge: Run a regular young leaders course in 2 or 3 venues (E and W Bowling, 
Laisterdyke) enabling young people to become volunteers and tackle local community 
projects 

 
 NCS: Young people on the National Citizens Service raised £1,100 in a variety of activities 

to fund other youth work in the District and are therefore investing back into provision in the 
district.  

 
 Bradford Volunteer Centre has been active in promoting information about volunteering 

and the People Can Make A Difference campaign to young people and have reached over 
1000 young people 15-18 in the District giving volunteering workshops in the following 
schools ; Dixons City Academy, St Bedes, Beckfoot Upperheaton, Bradford Girls Grammar. 
At Bradford Girls Grammar School the 67 pupils volunteered 2600 hours. 

 
Funding 
The Bradford District Community Fund is generating money for community projects and 
distributed grants from a bank to Emerge to fund ongoing youth work see this amazing video. 
https://www.facebook.com/bradforddcf/videos/1314346835274828/ 
The Community Fund also gave grants to sports clubs affected by the floods that provide youth 
sports and the monies were raised in a public appeal. The Bradford District Community Fund is 
currently accepting applications for the Pears Youth Fund to fund ongoing youth work and is in the 
process of distribution youth grants for Bradford Council. 
 
Demonstrating impact 
Emerge: are able to evidence that they work with over 500 young people weekly, and in the last 
12 months 1700 individuals were involved. Key outcomes are personal growth (confidence, self-
esteem, social skills improved), increased attendance and achievement at school (evidenced by 
schools), reduced involvement in ASB, increase health and wellbeing and safer communities. 
 

Page 57

https://www.facebook.com/bradforddcf/videos/1314346835274828/


 

 

53 

BYDP is undertaking the Ambitions+ Quality Mark for infrastructure organisations. At present, it is 
the only Bradford group aiming for this standard. BYDP is trained to carry out social return on 
investment (SROI) evaluations and Cost Benefit Analysis. At present, it is the only Bradford based 
organisation carrying out SROI. 

 
 
Young Lives Bradford 
Sept 2017     younglivesbradgford@bradfordcvs.org.uk  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58

mailto:younglivesbradgford@bradfordcvs.org.uk


 

 

54 

 
Appendix G Journey of young volunteers in Bradford East  

Evidencing the value of youth work can be challenging, with the worth of residentials, workshops, 

international work and support invested in young people taking years to show its true impact.  East 

youth workers have recently seen the fruition of years of youth work practice invested in four young 

people. 

BR is a young white male aged 20 living on the Ravenscliffe estate.  BR was not confident at 

school and did not enjoy his time in school.  The youth club however was a different matter.  At the 

age of 14 BR began attending Ravenscliffe youth club.  BR attended workshops, activities and 

residentials over 4 years.  He was coached into taking responsibility for organising the tuck shop.  

Despite his peers challenging his active role in the youth club, he went on to mentoring young 

people & taking a lead role in planning activities and fundraising.  At the age of 18, he became a 

weekly volunteer at the junior club.  As he got older he began to volunteer at the senior club.  He 

has had a lead role in organising community events and fundraising within the estate.  BR went on 

to the volunteer training run by youth workers to give him a comprehensive understanding of his 

role and expectations as a youth work volunteer.  A few years down the line he has taken the 

Youth Work Award, a nationally recognised qualification, again run by the East youth work team. 

SA is a young Muslim Trans person from the BD2 area.  They sought out support from the Sound 

youth group at the age of 15 when things were getting tricky at home.  SA was isolated; 

unsupported and had only one ally, a friend from primary school.  They struggled with the 

challenges thrown at a young Muslim Trans people.  Through the activities and opportunities 

Sound gave SA they grew to be confident and comfortable with their identity.  SA has been key to 

consultations with LGBT young people, helping them to voice their opinions in forums, focus 

groups and meetings.  They have grown into positive role models for Trans young people. SA has 

played a pivotal role in the setting up of Phoenix, a youth group for Trans young people.  Over the 

years they have moved from being a mentor to being a volunteer.  Like BR, SA also undertook the 

volunteer training and later Youth Work award. 

HA is now 23 years of age and living in the BD3 area.  As a gay Muslim young man at the age of 

14, HA contacted Sound for support and guidance.  He travelled the journey of self-worth through 

the support offered at Sound.  He became interested in volunteering at the age of 17, undertook 

the volunteering course and began to volunteer with Sound.  At 19 he gained a place at Liverpool 

to study Sociology and psychology.  He was committed to volunteering and appreciated the 

opportunities given to him, so much so that over his years at university he came back in the 

summer to volunteer with young people across Bradford East.  He ran workshops, went on 

residentials and supported youth sessions. Due to his commitment he was offered a place on the 

Local Youth Work Award course. 

XS is a young Muslim woman from the BD3 area, now 22 years of age.  Facing challenges in her 

early teens about the way she choose to observe her religion, she chose to move in safe circles 

where she would be accepted.  XS first came into contact with the service 8 years ago at the age 

of fourteen through a positive identities initiative.  She was smart, challenging and motivated for 

change in society.  She was given the opportunity to engage in a 3 year international project with 

France and Denmark, Let’s Shake up Democracy.  Its focus was for young people to understand 

democratic process, exercise their rights, and take responsibilities for themselves and their 

Page 59



 

 

55 

community.  Over the years XS became a mentor for young people and soon moved on to 

volunteering.  She was keen to work within a youth work setting and went on to do the youth & 

community degree.  Whilst at university she continued to volunteer at events and proactively chose 

to do her placement in a white working class estate with the youth service.  

These four young people have had youth workers walk by their sides as they faced the challenges 

thrown before them.  For an outsider it can often be difficult to fathom out the role of a youth work 

within the journey of a young person.  My belief is that we go the extra mile and this in itself sends 

a message to young people.  

These four young people may have succeeded with or without youth work intervention but what we 

know is that they went on to volunteer, support others like themselves and put time and 

commitment in to getting a youth work qualification.  Four weeks ago all four young people secured 

posts as casual youth workers with the East team. 

 

Norrina Rashid  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

 

56 

Appendix H – Community and Engagement Activities 
 

Activities/ Events organised by young people 

 Six young volunteers support the Power Girls Youth Group now takes place at Women 
Zone. They support programs of activity which equip their peers with knowledge and 
information about the issues around healthy eating, emotional attachments, healthy 
relationships and staying safe.   

 

 Three junior youth clubs run weekly across the wards which are staffed by one youth 
worker and young volunteers  

 

 Young people have taken part in over a dozen community clean ups and lead clean ups in 
the Great British clean up initiative 

 

 Young volunteers at Ravenscliffe  set up a community library for their peers 
 

 Young people have helped plan, organise and carryout fund raising activities at community 
days in Eccleshill, Little Horton, Idle Thackley and Bradford Moore. 
 
 

 Designing anti-littering  sessions have taken place across the district for community fun 
days  
 

 Several bag packs have taken place at local supermarkets to fund raise 
 

 Young people in Little Horton organised afternoon tea for elders in the community.  
 

 Volunteers at Greenwood Youth Centre organised and invited youth clubs from across all 
wards to a world Xmas gig at Greenwood Centre. Young people from across the youth 
clubs researched traditional Xmas dishes from around the world and took part in a cooking 
challenge bringing a dish each to share on the day. The event also featured world music, 
and traditional dances.  It provided an opportunity to explore cultures and identities 
bringing together people from diverse backgrounds promoting cohesion, respect and 
harmony.   

 

 Phoenix youth group hosted the regions LGBT youth Christmas celebration. LGBT youth 
groups from Leeds, Kirklees and Halifax attended the celebrations .Having participated in a 
series of workshops about gender identity and emotional wellbeing, members of Phoenix 
felt it was important that there was at least one space where Trans young people could be 
themselves.  

 

 Young people from Ravenscliffe Youth Centre made gifts during youth sessions for older 
members of the community as part of a wider intergenerational project.  Young people 
spent 3 weeks and made 40 handmade gifts which were given out to as Christmas presents 

 

Page 61



 

 

57 

 Phoenix youth group ran 2 community cafes and a table top sale as fundraisers. Young 
people planned and ran the events  

 

 Black, Asian Minority and Ethnic young people (BAME) who are Lesbian Gay Bisexual 
Transgender (LGTB) researched and made contact with similar groups in Leeds, 
Manchester, Sheffield, Liverpool and London. With the support of workers they have had 4 
net working meet ups and a residential. Two of the young people are volunteers taking a 
lead role. The sessions give participants the opportunity to explore how they engage and 
participate in wider community life.  

 

 Young volunteers organised hosting their peers from the black and minority ethnic 
communities from all over the country. It was part of a positive Bradford for LGBT 
communities. The afternoons program included a visit to the historic Saltaire, City Park and 
the National Science and Media Museum and was followed by discussions about life for 
BAME LGBT young people in the city 

 
 
Activities/ events encouraging active citizenship  

 Several boys nights in have been run to giving boys and young men a space to explore their 
role in society and what being a ‘real’ man means to both them and society. They have the 
opportunity to develop self-care skills through personal care and body image workshops 
and explore emotional wellbeing and anger management 
 

 Similar to the boys nights in several sessions have run for girls and young women. Again 
the sessions take place on a Sunday afternoon and give girls and young women space to 
explore their role in society , their hopes dreams and aspirations and looking at how they 
can realise their aspirations .  

 

 Youth workers ran voter registration workshops in schools and youth clubs where young 
people learnt about the democratic decision making process and then encouraged to 
register to vote. XX yp registered 

 
  

 Young people attended ‘Out’ a theatre production hosted by Bradford play house. The play 
explored the joys and challenges LGBT people face in being open about their gender 
identity and sexuality.   

 Love actually workshops were run by youth workers over valentines week. Creative arts 
were employed to run a series of workshops to explore love and relationships. The 
workshops raised LGBT awareness with young people from across the area. All young 
people participating attended a film night  where a series of shorts around LGBT 
relationships, friendships, bullying, support and survival was screened  
 

 Phoenix Youth Group ran a Body Positivity day in the February half-term. Going shopping 
for clothes is often stressful and upsetting for Trans young people as they are often 
challenged by store staff as to their gender identity when entering changing rooms. Youth 

Page 62



 

 

58 

workers spent  a couple of hours with young people shopping for clothes before returning 
back to the Equity Centre to participate in a series of workshops around safety on tucking , 
binding and tips on makeup. This was followed by mini fashion shoot where young people 
dressed up and got their photos taken. The day ended the group attending the LGBT 
Community Stars event at City hall. 

 

 A six week targeted project aimed at young men 11 – 16 years old who were involved with 
anti-social behaviour was run. The project gave young people the opportunity to gain a 
better understanding of what  anti -social behaviour is , explore their own attitudes and 
behaviours and look at the consequences of crime 

 

 Young people from across the area attend an International Day against Homophobia and 
Transphobia (IDAHO) which took place in City Hall. Attendees listen to the experience of 
speakers with a focus how to strengthen the visibility and voice of LGBTIQ parents and how 
to strengthen the visibility and voice of children of LGBTIQ parents. 

 

 Bradford Youth Service teamed up with Freedom Studios to run a series of drama 
workshops which gave young people the opportunity to explore life in their 
neighbourhood. There was a focus on positives, negatives and steps to address issues  

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 12 October 
2017. 
 
 

            O 
Subject:   
 
HARROGATE ROAD, APPERLEY BRIDGE - OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO A 
PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers objections to the recently advertised proposal for No Waiting 
At Any Time restrictions on Harrogate Road, Apperley Bridge, Bradford. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward: 13     Idle & Thackley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning & Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Smith 
Phone: (01274) 434674 
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment & Waste Management 

 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7/



Bradford East Area Committee 
 

2 
10/08/2017 

GMG 

1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1. This report considers objections to the recently advertised proposed No Waiting  At 
Any Time restrictions on Harrogate Road, Apperley Bridge, Bradford. 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1. Planning permission (REF: 14/05285/MAO) has been granted for the construction of 
up to 130 residential dwellings with associated access on Harrogate Road, Bradford. 
As part of the new signalised site access, a Traffic Regulation Order for No Waiting 
At Any Time restrictions is proposed to ensure the safe through passage of traffic. 

2.2. The proposed waiting restrictions are shown on drawing No. TDG/THS/103444/GA-
1B attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

2.3. The Traffic Regulation Order was formally advertised between 23rd May and 19th 
June 2017. In addition to the street notices publicising the proposal, letters were also 
sent to properties adjacent to the length of proposed waiting restrictions. 

2.4. A total of 78 objections have been received. A summary of the valid points of 
objection and corresponding officer comments is tabulated below: - 

Objectors concerns Officer comments 

The reduction in the number of available 
parking spaces adjacent to St Johns 
Church will affect local community groups 
and nearby businesses. This may impact 
on the viability of St Johns Church as a 
community hub. 

 
There will be a transfer of parking 
associated with St Johns Church to nearby 
streets. 

 

The proposal is for the minimum 
amount of yellow lining considered 
appropriate to maintain the safe 
through passage of vehicle. 
 
Harrogate Road is a public highway 
and as such its primary function is for 
the passage of traffic.  
 

Disabled, Elderly and parents with young 
children visiting the church will have to 
park further away. 
 

There are exemptions within the 
Traffic Regulation Order to allow 
passengers to board/alight on the 
yellow lines, and/or allow blue badge 
holders to park for up to 3 hours. 

The proposal will encourage dangerous 
and illegal parking. 
 

Parking Services are informed as and 
when any new waiting restrictions are 
introduced and requested to carry out 
appropriate enforcement action. 

The order has been made without giving 
the public full knowledge of the impact of 
the scheme, including consideration of the 
proposed major improvement scheme at 
the Harrogate Road/New Line junction. 

 
 

The proposals have been developed 
independently of the Harrogate 
Road/New Line major junction 
improvement due to the significant 
difference in scheme programme 
dates. 
 

Page 66



Bradford East Area Committee 
 

3 
10/08/2017 

GMG 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The latter scheme has been the 
subject of its own local publicity 
exercise. 
Any further proposed waiting 
restrictions (for the Harrogate 
Road/New Line major junction 
improvement) will include appropriate 
public consultations. 
 

The proposal should not proceed without 
the provision of alternative parking 
provision to mitigate for the loss of on-
street parking. 
 

There is no scope or budget within the 
current proposals to include for the 
provision of alternative off-street 
parking. 
 
However, if the measures that are the 
subject of this report were to be 
implemented, proposals for the 
Harrogate Road/New Line major 
junction improvement could be 
developed in the light the prevailing 
parking situation and to include 
consideration of any alternative 
parking options. 

Public consultation has not taken place. 
 

The proposals have been advertised 
via press notices, street notices and 
local letter drop. 

 

2.4 Many of the objections also list a concern about the new housing site being an ‘over 
development’ in this area. The housing development has already attained planning 
permission and the specific issue being reported is the Traffic Regulation Order, 
therefore this concern is not being considered as part of this report. 

2.5 An e-mail supporting the proposal has also been received. This is on the basis of 
the proposed waiting restrictions having a positive impact on cycling. 

3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1. Local ward members and the emergency services were consulted on the original 
proposals. Local ward members do not support these proposals. 

4.0 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1. The estimated cost of the proposals is £7,000. Funding to process the Traffic 
Regulation Order and implement the associated works has been provided by the 
developer 

 

Page 67



Bradford East Area Committee 
 

4 
10/08/2017 

GMG 

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1. A failure to implement appropriate waiting restrictions at the new site access will 
leave a potential for vehicular conflict and safety issues at this junction. 

6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 

6.1. There are no specific issues arising from this report. The course of action proposed is 
in general accordance with the Councils power as Highway Authority. 

7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

There are no issues arising from the Council’s Equality & Diversity Strategy. 

7.2. SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no significant Sustainability implications arising from this report. 

7.3. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and 
emissions from other greenhouse gases arising from this report. 

7.4. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

The proposals are being promoted to ensure the safe passage of traffic at the new 
housing site access. There are exemptions within the Traffic Regulation Order to 
allow passengers to board/alight on the yellow lines, and/or allow blue badge holders 
to park for up to 3 hours. 

7.5. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

None 

7.6. TRADE UNION 

None 

7.7. WARD IMPLICATIONS 

Ward members have been consulted on the proposals. 

7.8. AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

None 

8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

None 

Page 68



Bradford East Area Committee 
 

5 
10/08/2017 

GMG 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1. Councillors may propose an alternative course of action on which they will receive 
appropriate officer advice. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1. That the objections be overruled and the proposed No Waiting At Any Time 
restrictions on Harrogate Road be implemented as advertised. 

10.2. That the objectors be informed accordingly. 

11.0 APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – drawing TDG/THS/103444/GA-1B 

12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1. File ref:TDG/THS/103444

Page 69



APPENDIX 1 

6 

 

Page 70



 
 

1 
 

 
 

Report of the Area Co-ordinator to the meeting of the 
Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 12 October 
2017 

 
 

           P 
Subject:   
 
Cleaner and greener streets and neighbourhoods in Bradford East – Devolution to Area 
Committee 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report provides an update relating to Council Wardens, Environmental Enforcement 
and Street Cleansing in the Bradford East Area. It highlights a developing approach that 
delivers on the cleaner/greener agenda at an Area, Ward, neighbourhood and street level 
that is supported by residents, businesses and community organisations as part of the 
People Can – Make a Difference Campaign.  
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director Place 

Portfolio:   
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety/ 
Environment, Sport and Culture 
 

Damian Fisher,  Area Co-ordinator  
Louise Williams, Area Co-ordinator 
Phone: 01274 437146 / 01274 431066 
E-mail: damian.fisher@bradford.gov.uk 
  louise.williams@bradford.gov.uk 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Area:   
 
Corporate / 
Environment and Waste Management 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8/

mailto:damian.fisher@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:louise.williams@bradford.gov.uk


  
 

2 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides an update relating to Council Wardens, Environmental 

Enforcement and Street Cleansing in the Bradford East Area. It highlights a 
developing approach that delivers on the cleaner/greener agenda at an Area, 
Ward, neighbourhood and street level that is supported by residents, 
businesses and community organisations as part of the People Can – Make a 
Difference Campaign.  

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 In 2012 the Council Executive devolved a number of services to Area 

Committees. The purpose of this was to increase local accountability and to 
increase the effectiveness of service delivery through increased synergy 
between services at the local level.  

 
2.2 The role of Ward Councillors is integral to the functioning of the developing 

approach. Good local leadership encourages positive behaviours with local 
communities and has a positive impact on staff who feel more valued and 
motivated.  

 
2.3 In November 2015 a report came to Area Committee outlining the People Can 

Make a Difference Campaign which the Bradford East Area Committee 
endorsed.  

 
2.4 Within Neighbourhood and Customer Services, Area Co-ordinators are 

responsible for a range of officers and devolved services that promote the 
clean and active communities agenda and make contributions to other 
outcomes. This report only deals with the cleaner elements. However, it is 
important to recognise that the services and resource allocation also support 
a wider range of outcomes (highlighted within Ward Plans) as part of their 
roles and functions: 

 
2.5 These include the following: 
 

 Ward Officers 

 Council Wardens 

 Street Cleansing Operatives 

 Youth Workers 

 Environmental Enforcement Officers and  
 
2.6 The developing approach to cleaner streets and neighbourhoods 
 
 These area-based functions allow a more joined-up and flexible approach to 

tackling issues at a ward-and neighbourhood-level. Essentially ward-based 
teams are created that include functions delivered by different staff. Ward 
Officers consider the priorities included in Ward Plans and work with the 
officers listed above to develop projects to respond to the priorities. These 
projects often involve actions by different officers dependent upon their 
knowledge and roles.  

Page 72



  
 

3 
 

 
 In terms of maintaining clean streets and neighbourhoods there is a balance 

between: 
 

 Street cleansing clearing up  

 People taking responsibility themselves 
 
2.7 Within the scope of reduced resources, there is an increased need to 

encourage more people and communities to take on more personal 
responsibility and for our services to support people who volunteer to help.  

 
 To maintain clean streets and neighbourhoods we need to get the balance 

right between the following approaches: 
 

 Deployment of a responsive street cleansing service 

 Enforcement of the law where people infringe it and cause environmental 
issues 

 Raising awareness within the public of the possible implications of 
irresponsible behaviour 

 Encouraging residents to volunteer and take action themselves.  
 
2.8 Therefore there are important educative and engagement roles. In terms of 

Ward Officer and Warden education and engagement, there are numerous 
examples of projects that are undertaken that help to support the cleaner and 
greener agenda.  

 
Sometimes this work is led by residents or businesses and when it isn’t, 
officers encourage and support residents to become involved as part of the 
‘People Can’ approach. Examples of who staff engage with include schools, 
community organisations and individual residents. 

 
2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environmental Enforcement 
 
The Environmental Enforcement Team is responsible for enforcing 
legislation affecting the visible environment. The Team consists of the 
Environmental Services and Enforcement Manager, 2 Senior Enforcement 
Officers and 7.5 Enforcement Officers. The Team moved from 
Environmental Health to Neighbourhood and Customer Services in January 
2016 in order to work more collaboratively with Council Wardens, Ward 
Officers and Street Cleansing Operatives. Enforcement Officers are already 
working for part of the week from Area Co-ordinators’ Offices to facilitate this 
closer working relationship.  
 
Enforcement staff have been deployed to area teams as follows: 
 
Bradford East = 2.5 officers 
Bradford West = 2 officers 
Bradford South = 2 officers (Including 1 Senior Enforcement Officer) 
Keighley = 1 officer 
Shipley = 1 officer 

Page 73



  
 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.12 
 

 
1 Senior Enforcement Officer also provides additional cover across Bradford 
West, Shipley and Keighley as required. 
 
Deployment of staff across areas has been based on numbers of service 
requests/complaints received over previous years. The deployment model is 
regularly reviewed to ensure that resources are deployed appropriately. 
 
Enforcement Officers respond to complaints generated through the Council’s 
Contact Centre and from referrals by Council Wardens and other 
Neighbourhoods staff. However, as part of the area-based approach to 
tackling environmental issues affecting neighbourhoods, the Team is 
embracing opportunities to move from a reactive to a more proactive 
service.  
 
The team covers the following work areas: 
 
Fly tipping 
 
Fly tipping is a criminal offence that carries an unlimited fine or up to 5 years 
imprisonment upon successful prosecution. Nationally there have been year 
on year increases in fly tipping. In 2014/15 - 10,561  incidents of fly tipping 
were recorded in Bradford. 1,985 tonnes of waste was illegally dumped 
costing the Council over £270,000 for collection and disposal of the waste. 
The Environmental Enforcement Team actively investigates fly tipping 
incidents to identify and prosecute offenders. The team carries out a range 
of work to tackle fly tipping : 
 
Surveillance of fly tipping hotspots – there are currently a number of 
CCTV cameras which have been placed at fly tipping hotspots. The cameras 
are linked to the Council’s CCTV network and are placed on lampposts. 
They have been very successful in capturing fly tipping incidents involving 
vehicles. The Team uses the DVLA database to identify vehicle keepers 
who are then interviewed under the Police & Criminal Evidence Act to 
secure prosecutions against drivers and/or passengers of vehicles who were 
involved in the fly tipping. The success of the cameras has resulted in the 
team securing additional funding to purchase more cameras. They are 
currently being rolled out across the district as more locations are being 
identified. It must be noted that not all locations are suitable for these types 
for cameras due to connectivity issues with the Council’s CCTV network. 
 
In addition, the Team has invested in a further 7 standalone covert cameras. 
These are designed to be hidden at locations where CCTV cameras are not 
suitable such as rural locations, back streets, lay bys etc. These cameras 
allow the team some flexibility to carry out surveillance in difficult areas and 
they can be moved to different locations relatively easily. The team has also 
had successful prosecutions using these types of cameras. 
 
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) for fly tipping- New legislation was 
introduced last year allowing Councils to issue fixed penalty fines for low 

Page 74



  
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.16 
 
 
 

level fly tipping as an alternative to prosecution. The definition of “low level” 
fly tipping means where a car boot or less of domestic waste is fly tipped. In 
Bradford the Council set the fixed penalty fine at £400 payable within 15 
days which is reduced to £300 if paid within 10 days. The Enforcement 
Team started issuing FPNs in October 2016 and to date has issued 26 with 
the vast majority being paid. This has generated £6,100 of income which the 
team has reinvested into surveillance cameras. 
 
Work with land owners – officers work with land owners to identify long 
term solutions to reduce/prevent the recurrence of fly tipping at sites where 
rubbish is regularly dumped. This includes encouraging the land owner to 
sell or develop the site, fence off the land or ensure waste is removed 
regularly from the site. In cases where land ownership is known enforcement 
action may also be considered and the Enforcement Team can prosecute 
landowners for allowing waste to accumulate on their land.  
 
Ward Officer Team (WOTs) meetings – officers take fly tipping data and 
intelligence to WOTs to ensure that a multi-agency approach is developed 
and that the most sustainable solution is sought. Recently this has resulted 
in multi-agency stop and search operations that target criminal behaviour in 
relation to motor vehicles e.g illegal waste carriers, uninsured drivers and 
unsafe vehicles. 
 
Community engagement and education/enforcement – some fly tipping 
hotspots are close to residential areas and often the fly tipping is caused by 
local residents. It is often difficult to identify and prosecute offenders and 
community-based solutions are the only option. An example of this is 
rubbish dumped on unadopted back streets. The Council is not responsible 
for cleaning unadopted back streets and the responsibility for this falls to 
residents. In such cases occupiers (not owners) of properties adjoining the 
unadopted streets are legally responsible for the waste and this is difficult to 
enforce due to the large number of occupiers of some unadopted back 
streets.  
 
In such cases Enforcement officers work closely with Council Wardens and 
Ward Officers to undertake days of action to talk to residents to educate 
them about the services that they can use to responsibly dispose of their 
waste. People are also encouraged to report fly tipping. Back street 
community clean ups are organised where residents working alongside 
Wardens and Ward officers collect the rubbish and Street Cleansing teams 
remove and dispose of the rubbish. In some areas this has worked very well 
however where there has been poor engagement and participation by 
residents the Environmental Enforcement Team will follow up with formal 
action involving serving enforcement notices on all occupiers, arranging 
removal of the rubbish and recovering the costs from all the occupiers. 
 
Seizure of vehicles – new legislation allowing Councils to seize vehicles 
involved in fly tipping was used for the first time in Bradford last year. A van 
that was involved in multiple fly tips was eventually caught on CCTV 
camera. The vehicle was not registered or insured and the keeper could not 

Page 75



  
 

6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.20 
 
 

be traced. Images of the vehicle were circulated to Council Wardens and 
Clean Teams to see if the vehicle could be found. The vehicle was 
eventually spotted by a cleansing operative and the Enforcement Team was 
notified. The Enforcement Team worked in partnership with the Police to 
seize the vehicle. Images of the vehicle and the driver were publicised in 
local press and social media and after the owner of the vehicle refused to 
come forward the vehicle was crushed. The  crushing of the van was a first 
for a Yorkshire Council and received national media attention on ITN news 
as well as a massive 50,000 views - breaking the record on the Council’s 
Face book page. The driver of the vehicle has since been identified by the 
public and a prosecution is now pending. 
 
Rubbish in Gardens and on private land – the Enforcement Team 
receives large numbers of complaints relating to rubbish in gardens and on 
private land.  New powers under the Anti-Social Behaviour (Crime & 
Policing) Act 2014 has allowed the Team to successfully use Community 
Protection Notices  (CPNs) to ensure householders and landowners keep 
their property clean and tidy and free of rubbish accumulations. Non-
compliance with a CPN is a criminal offence and offenders can be issued 
with £100 fixed penalty fines or prosecuted. Fines can be up to £5000 for 
householders and £20,000 for businesses.  Where CPNs have not been 
complied with the Team has prosecuted offenders and in some cases 
applied for Remedial Orders (Court Orders) to ensure the notices are 
complied with. A recent prosecution for non-compliance with a CPN resulted 
in a statutory maximum £20,000 fine. 
 
Behaviour Change - The Enforcement Team works closely with the Press 
Office to ensure all successful prosecutions for waste offences are 
publicised through the press and social media in order to maximise 
awareness of these types of offences and penalties, to hopefully affect 
behaviour change so that the public become more responsible about their 
waste.           
 
Duty of Care – The Team enforces the Duty of Care regulations to ensure  
businesses contain all their waste and only use licensed operators to collect, 
transport and dispose of waste. The Enforcement Team and Council 
Wardens regularly visit businesses to ensure compliance with the 
regulations. 
 
The Householder Waste Duty of Care Regulations came into force in 2005 
and placed on all householders a responsibility to ensure that whoever is 
used to collect, transport and dispose of waste, is appropriately licensed.  
Recently there has been an increase in householders using unlicensed 
carriers of waste which has resulted in a small number of prosecutions. The 
Enforcement Team is currently looking at ways to identify and tackle illegal 
waste carriers which target vulnerable members of the public. 
 
Litter & Dog Control Order offences – The Council currently issues £80 
fixed penalty fines for litter and dog control order offences. Fines can be 
issued by Council Wardens and Environmental Enforcement Officers. The 

Page 76



  
 

7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Enforcement Team will also issue fixed penalty notices on behalf of the 
public if there is an accompanying witness statement and the person is 
prepared to attend court. Where fixed penalty notices have been issued to 
the public for littering & dog control order offences and the fines have not 
been paid the Environmental Enforcement Team prepare prosecution files 
for these offences. In the last 18 months there have been 2 successful 
prosecutions for dog fouling offences. 
 
Performance figures 
 
As mentioned above the Enforcement Team receives requests for service 
(complaints) from a number of sources e.g. direct from the public, Council 
Wardens and other Council Officers. The Enforcement Officers work closely 
with Wardens and a large number of complaints are initially referred to 
Wardens to investigate in the first instance. These are typically complaints 
about rubbish in gardens. Wardens will visit problem properties and request 
owners and occupiers to tidy up their gardens. Any non-compliance with 
Wardens requests are referred back to the Enforcement Team for formal 
action. 
 
Service Requests (complaints) 
 
The following table shows numbers of service requests received by the 
Enforcement Team and numbers dealt with by Wardens for 2015/16 and 
2016/17: 
 

 2015/16 2016/17 

Total Complaints Received 5891 6651 

Dealt with by Enforcement 3960 4520 

Dealt with by Wardens 1931 2131 

Referred back to Enforcement 
by Wardens 

358 476 

 
The following table shows the numbers of complaints per Ward for years 
2015/16 and 2016/17: 
 
Bradford East 
 

 2015/16 2016/17 

Bolton & Undercliffe 203 200 

Bowling & Barkerend 506 548 

Bradford Moor 393 392 

Eccleshill 189 233 

Idle & Thackley 114 94 

Little Horton 327 435 

Total 1732 1902 

 
 
 
 

Page 77



  
 

8 
 

 
2.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statutory Notices 
The Anti-Social Behaviour ( Crime & Policing) Act 2014 allows Councils to 
issue Community Protection Notices ( CPNs) to remove waste from private 
land e.g. back gardens. Before a CPN can be served a Community 
Protection Warning (CPW) must be served. The CPW is a strongly worded 
letter that has the Council and Police logo across the top and is very 
effective at securing compliance. If a CPW is not complied with a CPN is 
served. Non-compliance with a CPN is a criminal offence and upon 
prosecution can lead to fine of up to £5,000 for domestic premises and 
£20,000 for businesses. 
 
Generally there are high levels of compliance with CPWs and therefore 
CPNs are only served in extreme circumstances. 
 
Other statutory notices are served where there is a more specific problem 
that may require more immediate action such as accumulations of toxic or 
hazardous waste (e.g. asbestos) or where rodent infestations are associated 
with waste. 
 
The following table shows the number of CPWs, CPNs and “other” Notices ) 
served by Ward for waste offences for the years 2015/16 and 2016/17: 
 
 

Ward 2015/16 2016/17 

 CPWs CPNs Other 
Notices 

CPWs CPNs Other 
Notices 

Bolton & 
Undercliffe 

18 0 2 23 0 2 

Bowling & 
Barkerend 

56 6 13 73 17 12 

Bradford 
Moor 

67 36 24 70 22 8 

Eccleshill 26 4 5 32 11 3 

Idle & 
Thackley 

5 0 1 5 1 2 

Little 
Horton 

48 23 17 82 21 15 

 
Prosecution of Offences 
 
The key strategy for the Enforcement Team over the last 18 months has 
been to increase levels of enforcement for waste offences (such as rubbish 
in gardens) by serving statutory notices and prosecuting offenders for non-
compliance with the requirements of notices, in particular CPNs. Due to high 
levels of compliance with CPWs and CPNs prosecutions for these offences 
have not always been necessary and the vast majority of prosecutions have 
been for fly tipping offences. 
 
The deployment of CCTV cameras has allowed the team to proactively 
target fly tippers by undertaking extensive surveillance of fly tipping hotspots 

Page 78



  
 

9 
 

 
 
 
 

and subsequently identify and prosecute offenders. However as most fly 
tipping offences involve the use of a vehicle a successful prosecution 
depends on the ability to identify the registered keeper of the vehicle. 
Unfortunately a number of vehicles caught on camera have not registered 
the vehicle keeper details with the DVLA and therefore it is not always 
possible to identify the offender. Such cases are referred to the Police and 
details are placed to the Police Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
(ANPR) system for further action. 
 
In addition, for “low level fly tipping” typically involving a vehicle dumping a 
car boot or less of domestic waste a £400 fly tipping fixed penalty notice will 
be issued as opposed to a prosecution. However for serious fly tipping 
offences, e.g. more than a car boot load of waste or commercial waste, the 
policy is to prosecute for the offence. 
 
There has been a significant increase in prosecutions since January 2016 
compared with previous years. For example in 2015 there were only 7 
prosecutions for waste offences. This included 4 prosecutions for littering. 
 
Number of Prosecutions since 1st January 2016 to date 
 

Offence Number of Prosecutions 

Flytipping 23 

Non compliance with CPN 8 

Duty of Care 3 

Dog Fouling 2 

Total 36 

 
 
Total fines = £42,905  
 
Total Costs = £16,560 
 
Note – All fines are paid to the Ministry of Justice, however the Council 
receives the costs. 
 

2.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.26 
 
 
 
 

Parking Services/Wardens 
 
Improvements to information about parking on the Council’s website – we 
are currently reviewing and updating the Parking Services-related content on 
the Bradford Council website in order to make the site more user friendly to 
the public, with all the relevant information in one place in plain English. Car 
park information has been set up in constituency areas with additional 
information included such as the number of spaces. 
 
Cashless parking introduced in mid-August 2017 – this will enable 
customers to pay for on- and off-street parking using their mobile phone and 
debit/credit card.  Customers download an app or registered users can text. 
There is no cost to the Council for this service. The customer will be charged 
6p for parking charges under £4.00 and 12p if they pay over £4.00. If the 

Page 79



  
 

10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
2.27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.31 
 
 

customer wants to extend their stay it will cost them 12p on top of the 
additional parking charge. It is a more convenient method of payment for 
customers as they can extend their stay without returning to their car and 
they obviously don’t need to have cash to park.  
 
Permit applications on line started on 29th August 2017 – the web site has 
been improved to update the permit pages and customers are being 
encouraged to go on line to apply for or to renew a permit. Specific 
information is provided about what is required for different permit 
applications, reducing the need for further contact. The site is user-friendly 
and an acknowledgement of receipt of the application is sent immediately to 
the customer. The customer is notified via email if the application has been 
approved, but if the application is rejected the reason is stated including the 
additional information that is required. 
 
Smart phone technology to issue Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) started in 
July 2017 - the wardens have an application on their Smart phones to issue 
PCNs. The new software also provides real time data so that any PCNs 
issued are immediately recognised on the system so the customer can pay 
or appeal immediately.  The new technology enables the wardens to issue 
PCNs more easily and quickly and reduces the amount of equipment they 
need to carry. The new technology also results in fewer errors, as the 
warden scans the car registration rather than manually inputting it. 
 
Response Master Self-serve – specialist correspondence software to 
provide drivers contesting parking fines with prompt and clear responses to 
appeals was introduced a few years ago. This automated software solution 
delivers greater consistency and accuracy and has recently been extended 
with a self-serve option for the public. This new self-serve platform allows 
drivers to informally test the appeal they are thinking of submitting, as they 
can find out more about the contravention code and the reason the PCN 
was issued to determine whether their appeal is likely to be successful. This 
has created increased back office efficiencies as the time spent answering 
phone calls from frustrated members of the public has fallen, the number of 
appeals has reduced as customers choose not to challenge the PCN after 
getting advice from self-serve and when appeals are submitted the reasons 
for the appeal are clearer and more relevant. 
 
Systems and Information Officer Post – the back office function in Parking 
Services is increasingly automated and reliant on a variety of 
systems/software. As officers have reduced their hours, it has enabled us to 
create this new post to support the team in all systems - and information - 
aspects of their work. The post holder will also be responsible for keeping 
abreast of new technological developments to ensure that we take 
advantage of systems that improve our efficiency and the customer 
experience.    
 
Blue badge - Council Wardens work with the Corporate Fraud Unit to tackle 
the misuse and abuse of the Disabled Persons (Blue Badge) Parking 
Scheme, making a difference to over 16,000 disabled badge holders. Blue 

Page 80



  
 

11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.33 
 
 
2.34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.35 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

badge misuse is when a blue badge is used to gain free parking without the 
badge holder being present or when the badge has been stolen, forged or is 
for a deceased person. In 2016/17, 175 referrals were made by Council 
Wardens, 35 of which resulted in the offender being prosecuted. This work 
helps reduce the number of repeat offenders and creates access to key 
parking spaces close to important amenities. Council Wardens in the city 
centre have been put forward, with other Council services, for the Sovereign 
Health Care Awards owing to their involvement in this work. 
 
Apprentices - 10 apprentice posts, Neighbourhood and Customer Services 
Support Officers, are being advertised in the Service with a closing date of 
18th September 2017. This apprenticeship covers three different roles: 
Council Wardens, Customer Services Officer and Environmental 
Enforcement Officer. The apprentices will be on fixed term contracts working 
for six months in each of the afore-mentioned areas.  
 
Radios – a survey of the district is being undertaken to identify where radio 
transmitters may need to be placed to optimise radio coverage. 
 
Body cameras - the Police, other agencies and other councils are 
increasingly recognising the deterrent effect of body cameras in relation to 
issues of violence and aggression. Body cameras also provide reassurance 
to staff and the public. Evidence of fly tipping captured on body cameras has 
been used for prosecution. Body cameras have been purchased for all 
Council Wardens and they are expected to wear these all the time when 
they are on duty. 
 
Litter enforcement contract – like many local authorities Bradford Council 
has procured the services of a company, 3GS, to enforce littering and dog 
control offences. From 17th July, eight Enforcement Officers have been 
issuing Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) to people who drop litter, urinate, spit 
and for Dog Control Order offences. They are working seven days a week 
on a shift system, predominantly in Bradford City Centre but they will also be 
able to cover other urban centres. The Enforcement Officers also spend 
significant time informing and educating offenders about their behaviour and 
the impact it has. They provide a total solution from the issue of the FPN to 
receiving and chasing payment, including the preparation of the prosecution 
file. The payment for a FPN will be £80 as the early payment option has 
been removed. 
 
The contract is cost neutral to the Council and some of the money paid in 
fines by the offenders will be reinvested in cleansing services in the district, 
meaning that those who drop the litter will be paying for it to be picked up.  
The company does not offer incentives for the issuing of FPNs and the 
Enforcement Officers dedicate two hours every month to work on 
community-based projects and this is paid for by 3GS. 
 

 
 
 

Page 81



  
 

12 
 

2.36 Publicity and Marketing 
 
  Neighbourhood Services are currently in discussions with Keep Britain Tidy 

and the Council’s marketing department with regards a hard hitting and 
sustained anti-litter/fly tipping and dog fouling campaign. The programme of 
campaigns throughout 2017/2018 will focus on different themes. The 
timetable is yet to be finalised but it is intended that the first campaign will 
begin in September with regards chewing gum litter. This is a significant 
problem within the Bradford District. It is very costly and time consuming to 
remove and removal it in itself can cause damage to some surfaces such as 
tarmac. 

 
Bradford Council will take part in a national campaign organised by the 
Chewing Gum Action Group (CGAG). The group is chaired by Defra and 
brings together representatives from the gum industry, the various regional 
“tidy” groups and the Chartered Institute of Waste Management. The purpose 
of the campaign is to raise awareness of the issue of discarded gum, to 
change behaviours and to ultimately reduce littered gum. 

It will promote the following messages; 

 Put your gum in a bin – a tangible way you can do your bit to show you 
care about where you live. 

 It’s your responsibility to do the right thing 

 People who irresponsibly dispose of their gum can be fined up to £80 on-
the-spot 

 

This is a good time for the Council to be involved. The new enforcement team 
have already fined people for discarding gum and the campaign will explain 
that discarded chewing gum is litter.  

Initially the campaign will be started in Bradford town centre with a launch on 
the 5th October and then be rolled out to Bradford East and other centres. 

The campaign, will post on social media on Bradford Council’s Twitter and 
Facebook pages, as well as send out a Stay Connected e-newsletter to all 
waste and recycling subscribers (approximately 9,500 subscribers). 

Monitoring and evaluation will be carried out during and after the campaign. 
We will be assisted in this by the Keep Britain Tidy Group. 

  

Page 82



  
 

13 
 

2.37  Following on from this campaign car litter will then be targeted. ‘We’re 
Watching You Signs’ will be erected at strategic locations of the district to 
raise awareness and remind car owners of their responsibilities and that they 
will be fined for littering. More details will be provided of forthcoming 
campaigns in future reports. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Press Office will also be involved in promoting maximum publicity for all 
campaigns together with any fines/prosecutions for offences to effectively 
manage behaviour change moving forward.  

 
2.38 Operational issues (Street Cleansing) 
 

Solar powered Smart Bins 
 
Currently there are 14 solar-powered Big Belly bins deployed in Bradford 
East. The locations for some bins have changed based on study of data from 
the online monitoring system for these bins; the current locations are shown 
below: 
 

Leeds Rd Outside Big Fellas  

Leeds Rd Outside Deli Chez  

Leeds Rd Outside Leeds Rd Fishery  

Leeds Rd Outside Leeds & Bradford Estate Agent 

Leeds Rd Outside Patel Conveyancing  

Leeds Rd Outside William Hill 

Leeds Rd Outside Zest 

Fullerton Rd Outside Elite Media 

Fullerton Rd Outside Nightclub  

The Green Outside Estate Agents 

Harrogate Rd Outside Londis 

Otley Road Outside Park Rd Fisheries 

Manchester Road Outside Yorkshire Bank 

Manchester Road Outside Takeaway 

Page 83



  
 

14 
 

 
The efficiency of a Big Belly bin is derived from reducing the need to empty 
the bin as often, but also by removing the need for a driver to visit a bin to 
check if it needs emptying. Optimum locations for these bins are where there 
is high usage of several bins where installation of one or more Big Belly bins 
would reduce the overall number of regular litter bins and also reduce the 
frequency of emptying the bins.  

 
Big Belly litter bins can compact the rubbish they hold which increases 
capacity to between 600 litres and 800 litres of rubbish, which is six to eight 
times more than the capacity of the litter standard bin. They have a solar 
panel on the top which powers a 12V battery that is constantly on trickle-
charge; requiring only eight hours of daylight, not sunlight. Having this smart 
infrastructure significantly reduces the number of staff hours required 
servicing bins and the bins have an integrated sim card and online telemetry 
management system that notifies the Council when it needs emptying by 
sending an email to management or a driver via a PC or smartphone. This 
means that only the bins that are approaching capacity will be emptied on any 
given day. In turn, this frees up valuable staff resources to enable the Council 
to create a cleaner environment for its residents and tourists with particular 
emphasis on attention to detail.  

 
There are plans to trial some sensors inside existing litter bins with an eye to 
understanding if further efficiencies can be derived from placement of sensors 
in remote locations to reduce any unnecessary journeys to empty. 

 
2.39 Litter Bin Survey 
 

Over the past few months an audit has been carried out on all the litter bins in 
the district. The Clean Team Drivers have collected the data by using their 
Smart Phones. The data has then been uploaded to an online GIS layer which 
allows the user to view not only locations of bins, but pictures of the bin too. 
This piece of work is still on-going. There is a Data cleansing exercise to 
check locations and remove any duplication and once all this is completed the 
layer will be made available to staff in each Area Coordinator’s office and to 
local Councillors via the Intranet. The current number of litter bins prior to data 
cleansing checks in Bradford East is 618.  

 
2.40 Mechanical Sweeper Routing 
 

The primary purpose of the Mechanical sweeping operation is to remove 
detritus (silt/mud), which if not tackled can lead to blocked gullies, unsafe 
roads and pavements, and accelerated weed growth. The routing exercise 
has required the development of a huge database of street-based information 
that allows the routing software to understand the requirements of the service. 
The eventual outcome will be electronically held routes that have been 
optimised to reduce any inefficiency in the existing service. These routes will 
allow a nominal frequency to be stated for each street in the district, though 
the undertaking of that frequency will still be subject to adverse weather and 
service-stand-downs. 

Page 84



  
 

15 
 

The project has reached a stage where a set of routes for the large road 
sweepers will be ready for testing by October. The project will then move on to 
the routing of the small sweepers which will be more complex but it is the 
intention new routes will be trialled for these machines. Members can have an 
input into the new routes if they so wish. It is anticipated that routes which 
need to be amended over the next year will be easily modified electronically. 

 
Over the summer weed spray units have been fitted on the back of five 
mechanical sweeper units and are currently being trialled. It is hoped the trial 
will prove successful and there maybe potential efficiency savings in the 
current weed spraying operation. 

 
2.41 Prescriptive Working 
 

Prescriptive working has been introduced into several wards as part of the 
introduction of 30 hour contracts for all new starters on Clean Teams. 
Effectively it was a way of ensuring that the reduction in hours for staff did not 
see a significant reduction in cleansing standards. By creating specific 
expectations on which streets will be treated as a priority and even detailing 
the route that will be taken, the Service would then see the requisite focus on 
the designated gateways on a daily basis even if there were staff shortages, 
and that the rest of the ward would be covered as best it can be in the 
unallocated time that remained after the prescriptive working was carried out. 

 
There are four wards where a prescriptive work plan has been introduced as 
part of this project of which Bradford Moor is one of them. 

 
These plans will be unique to each ward and based on incoming intelligence 
and initial ground work undertaken by officers. They will be mostly 
prescriptive, allow ward members to have an input into the plans and can be 
adapted to changing requirements or circumstances. The new prescriptive 
working pattern in Bradford Moor has generally worked very well with 
improvements in standards visually, as well as reductions in complaints and 
positive feedback from individuals active in the community.  

 
Developing the prescriptive plans is very detailed work and requires significant 
officer time to carry out properly. It is anticipated that this project could take 18 
months to roll out district wide.  

 
2.42 Service Requests (Appendix 1)  
 

There has been a significant reduction in the number of requests for service 
for Street Cleansing within the Bradford East Constituency. The most notable 
improvement was in Litter reports within Bradford Moor, which halved 
between the two periods. A completely new team with a prescriptive work plan 
was set up in this Ward between the two periods and it looks like this has 
driven big improvements in this ward in particular. 

 

Page 85



  
 

16 
 

To put the total number of requests for service in to perspective, this is 
equivalent to 2.56 requests per day within an area containing around 100,000 
residents. 

 
There has also been a very positive agenda for days of action and community 
engagement within parts of Bradford East, really trying to get residents to take 
more ownership of their localities. 

 
2.43 Performance – Street Cleansing (Appendix 2)  
 
 The service conducts regular surveys of each Ward to establish a local 

snapshot of environmental indicators for performance management purposes. 
The grading methodology is derived from the former Best Value National 
Performance Indicator - NI 195 indicator and the sample selection process 
has been adapted to specifically suit Ward based surveying.  

 
 In each Ward approximately six to eight priority streets are graded every 

month. These are areas of high pedestrian footfall, main roads or retail areas. 
In addition the monitoring officer will select a further seven to nine streets to 
include in the survey. 

 
 Grades for litter and detritus are awarded as follows: 

 
A None present 
B+ Almost clear 
B Some present but not below acceptable standard 
B- Part of street falls below an acceptable standard (half-fail) 
C Street falls below acceptable standard 
C- Very poor condition 
D Street is completely affected 
 
In Bradford East there has been a slight increase in Fly Tipping reports 
between the two periods. The figure of 674 during these four months equates 
to 5.52 reports per day within the entire Constituency. The Constituency has 
the highest rate of fly tipping occurrences being reported in the District. 
 
It is not clear why there have been reductions in some wards yet large 
increases in others, as Fly Tipping is a behavioural issue by residents this 
suggest some localised problems in two specific wards. 

 
3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 Proposals for Area Committee decision-making 
 
3.1.1 There are a number of factors to take into account when considering how to 

deploy resources at an Area level. For example, the Council policy on parking 
enforcement (as set out in Bradford Council’s application to Central 
Government when taking on responsibility for the function) is based on 
national statutory guidance. The policy expects a consistent, fair and 
transparent approach within the district to parking enforcement. With effect 

Page 86



  
 

17 
 

from 23rd January 2012 the civil enforcement function passed from Civil 
Enforcement Officers employed by Parking Services to Council Wardens. 
Council Wardens are now the Council’s designated Civil Enforcement 
Officers.  As such, Council Wardens are expected to deal with all cars parked 
in contravention in accordance with the district policy. This means that Council 
Wardens need to have a regular presence in parking hotspots and deal with 
any cars they find parked in contravention.  Statutory guidance clearly states 
that discretion is a back-office function and it is therefore not the decision of a 
Council Warden as to whether they deal with a car parked in contravention. 
The Council Warden has to issue a PCN and this can be appealed by the 
customer.  

 
3.1.2 In terms of the deployment of Council Wardens, the Area Committee may 

wish to consider the range of functions the Warden has to carry out and the 
risks associated with not balancing these. For example, if Council Wardens 
are not deployed to parking hotspot areas there is a likelihood of increased 
contraventions, safety and congestion implications, complaints and reduced 
income.  Similarly, if Council Wardens do not deal with environmental issues 
there will be an effect on the visual amenity and the likelihood of an increase 
in complaints and anti-social behaviour. 

 
3.1.3 In terms of Street Cleansing members are able to have influence and decide 

where staff and resources are deployed, the new routing patterns and the 
forthcoming prescriptive cleansing work plans. 

 
3.2 Parking  
 
3.2.1 Cashless parking – this Service will be introduced this financial year and will 

enable customers to pay for on- and off-street parking using their mobile 
phone and debit/credit card. The service will be available 24 hours per day, 
seven days a week. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
  
4.1 
 
 
 

The Council Warden Service budget 
 
The total Council Warden budget for the 76 Council Wardens (including 3 Area 
Operations Managers) has been set at £2,166,600 for the financial year 2017/18.  
 

Area Team Number of posts Budget (£) 2017/18 

City Centre Team 22 697,300 

Bradford East  12 314,300 

Bradford South 10 262,400 

Bradford West  12 314,400 

Keighley  9 236,400 

Shipley  8 210,500 

Area Operations Managers 3 131,300 

TOTAL 76   2,166,600 
 

 
  

Page 87



  
 

18 
 

4.2 Street Cleansing 
 

The Bradford East Street Cleansing front line operation has 25 staff, 3 
Mechanical Sweepers, seven large transit pick-ups with an overall budget of 
£750,400. 

 
5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
  
5.1 The financial risks posed are limited by the nature of the expenditure 

delegated.   
 
6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 
  
6.1 No specific issues. 
 
7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

7.1.1 Area Committee decisions will need to be made in line with Equal Rights 
legislation.  This will require Area Committees to assess the potential equality 
impact of any decisions they make. 

  
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.2.1 Increased local decision-making has the potential to create more sustainable 

solutions to local issues. 
  
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
  
7.3.1 No specific issues. 
  
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
  
7.4.1 Increased local decision making has the potential to improve community 

safety through more closely addressing local priorities. 
  
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
  
7.5.1 There are no Human Rights Act implications arising from this report. 
  
7.6 TRADE UNION IMPLICATIONS 
  
7.6.1 Trade unions are being consulted at levels 1, 2 and 3 on all changes to Street 

Cleansing and Warden services. 
  

7.7 WARD AND WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS 
  

Page 88



  
 

19 
 

7.7.1 The information in this report is relevant to all Wards in Bradford East.  An 
increased level devolution of the services will allow the Area Committee to 
further address local priorities for those services. 

  
8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
  
8.1 There are no not for publication documents. 
 
9.0 OPTIONS 
 
9.1 As the Services have now been devolved, the Area Committee can decide 

how to shape the Service within the previously-mentioned parameters. 
  
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
10.1 That the information in the report be noted and welcomed. 
 
11.0  APPENDICES 

11.1 Appendix 1 Service Requests – Street Cleansing 
 
11.2 Appendix 2 Performance Monitoring – Street Cleansing  
 
12.0  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 ‘Devolution to Area Committees’ (Document AG), Report of the Strategic 

Director of Environment and Sport to the Council Executive, 9th October 2012. 
 
12.2 ‘Devolution of Council Service budgets and responsibilities to Area 

Committees from 2012-13 onwards’ (Document U), Report of the Strategic 
Director of Environment and Sport to the meeting of the Council Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee on 5th October 2012, Devolution to Area 
Committees. 

 
12.3 ‘Council Warden Service devolution to Area Committee’, Report of the Area 

Coordinator to the meeting of the Bradford East Area Committee on 22nd 

November 2012. 
 
12.4 ‘Council Warden Service devolution to Area Committee’, Report of the Area 

Coordinator to the meeting of the Bradford East Area Committee on 23rd July 
2013. 

 
12.5 ‘Council Warden Service devolution to Area Committee’, Report of the Area 

Coordinator to the meeting of the Bradford East Area Committee on 21st 

November, Report to Bradford East Area Committee 2013. 
 
12.6 ‘Council Warden Service devolution to Area Committee’, Report of the Area 

Coordinator to the meeting of the Bradford East Committee on 26th June 2014. 

Page 89



  
 

20 
 

12.7 ‘Council Warden Service devolution to Area Committee’, Report of the Area 
Coordinator to the meeting of the Bradford East Committee on 26th March 
2015. 

 
12.8 ‘People Can Make a Difference’: Campaign to promote and encourage strong 

and active communities, Report of the Area Co-ordinator to the meeting of the 
Bradford East Area Committee on 19th November 2015. 

 
12.9 ‘Bradford East Ward Plans’, Report of the Area Co-ordinator to the meeting of 

the Bradford East Area Committee on 17th March 2016. 
 
12.10 ‘Cleaner and greener streets and neighbourhoods in Bradford East - 

Devolution to Area Committee, Report of the Bradford East Area Co-ordinator 
to the meeting of Bradford East Area Committee on Thursday 16th June 2016. 

 
 
  

Page 90



  
 

21 
 

APPENDIX 1  

SERVICE REQUESTS 
 

Bradford East Area Committee Report (Aug 2017) 

 Apr-
Jul 

Apr-Jul  

Area 2016 2017 Change 

East: Across Multiple Wards 56 29 -27 

Bolton & Undercliffe 23 30 7 

Bowling & Barkerend 83 85 2 

Bradford Moor 69 40 -29 

Eccleshill 29 53 24 

Idle & Thackley 29 24 -5 

Little Horton 67 51 -16 

Total 356 312 -44 

 

 

56 

23 

83 
69 

29 29 

67 

29 30 

85 

40 
53 

24 

51 

0
20
40
60
80

100

East:
Across

Multiple
Wards

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford
Moor

Eccleshill Idle &
Thackley

Little
Horton

Street Cleansing Requests for Service 
Apr-Jul 2016 to Apr-Jul 2017 
Bradford East Constituency 

2016 2017

Page 91



  
 

22 
 

 

 Apr-Jul  

 2016 2017 Change 

Litter 201 152 -49 

Dog fouling 19 10 -9 

Litter bin full 25 19 -6 

Detritus & Mud 33 17 -16 

Leaves/Blossom 6 6 0 

Green bags not 
collected 

2 3 1 

Human Excrement 3 0 -3 

Other (please specify) 67 105 38 

TOTAL 356 312 -44 

 

-27 

7 
2 

-29 

24 

-5 

-16 

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

East:
Across

Multiple
Wards

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford
Moor

Eccleshill Idle &
Thackley

Little
Horton

Change in Street Cleansing Requests 
for Service Apr-Jul 2016 to Apr-Jul 

2017 
Bradford East Constituency 

Page 92



  
 

23 
 

 

There has been a significant reduction in the number of requests for service for 
Street Cleansing within the Bradford East Constituency. The most notable 
improvement was in Litter reports within Bradford Moor, which halved between the 
two periods. A completely new team with a prescriptive work plan was set up in this 
Ward between the two periods and it looks like this has driven big improvements in 
this ward in particular. 
 
To put the total number of requests for service in to perspective, this is equivalent to 
2.56 requests per day within an area containing around 100,000 residents. 
There has also been a very positive agenda for days of action and community 
engagement within parts of Bradford East, really trying to get residents to take more 
ownership of their localities. 
  

-49 

-9 
-6 

-16 

0 1 

-3 

38 

-60

-50

-40

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

Change in Street Cleansing Requests for Service 
Apr-Jul 2016 to Apr-Jul 2017 
Bradford East Constituency 

Page 93



  
 

24 
 

Fly Tipping Reports 

Total Apr-Jul Apr-Jul 
Change 

Area 2016 2017 

East: Across Multiple Wards 62 56 -6 

Bolton & Undercliffe 49 29 -20 

Bowling & Barkerend 142 179 37 

Bradford Moor 120 119 -1 

Eccleshill 62 94 32 

Idle & Thackley 26 32 6 

Little Horton 180 165 -15 

Total 641 674 33 

 

 

 

62 49 

142 
120 

62 

26 

180 

56 
29 

179 

119 
94 

32 

165 

0

50

100

150

200

East:
Across

Multiple
Wards

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford
Moor

Eccleshill Idle &
Thackley

Little
Horton

Fly Tipping Apr-Jul 2016 to Apr-Jul 
2017 

Bradford East Constituency 

2016 2017

-6 

-20 

37 

-1 

32 

6 

-15 

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

East:
Across

Multiple
Wards

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford
Moor

Eccleshill Idle &
Thackley

Little
Horton

Change in Fly Tipping Apr-Jul 2016 to 
Apr-Jul 2017 

Bradford East Constituency 

Page 94



  
 

25 
 

In Bradford East there has been a slight increase in Fly Tipping reports between the 
two periods. The figure of 674 during these four months equates to 5.52 reports per 
day within the entire Constituency. The Constituency has the highest rate of fly 
tipping occurrences being reported in the District. 
 
It is not clear why there have been reductions in some wards yet large increases in 
others, as Fly Tipping is a behavioural issue by residents this suggest some 
localised problems in two specific wards. 
  

Page 95



  
 

26 
 

APPENDIX 2 
Monthly Monitoring 2015/16 to 2016/17 

Bradford East Constituency 

Litter - % of streets failing to reach an acceptable standard 

Litter - % of streets failing to reach an acceptable standard 

Ward 2015/16 2016/17 

Bolton & Undercliffe 5.00% 4.68% 

Bowling & Barkerend 33.87% 12.86% 

Bradford Moor 35.00% 15.55% 

Eccleshill 12.90% 2.59% 

Idle & Thackley 3.33% 2.22% 

Little Horton 39.06% 12.77% 

Bfd East Area 21.74% 8.32% 

 

 

The number of streets failing due to litter within Bradford East has fallen dramatically 
between these two periods. The three poorest performing wards have been the ones 
that have driven this overall fall. Bradord Moor received a new team and a full 
prescriptive work plan in Summer/Autumn 2016 and it looks like that has worked well 
overall. The team in Bowling & Barkerend had its vacancies filled which may account 
for the improvements there. 
 

 

 

5.00% 

33.87% 35.00% 

12.90% 

3.33% 

39.06% 

4.68% 

12.86% 
15.55% 

2.59% 2.22% 

12.77% 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford Moor Eccleshill Idle & Thackley Little Horton

Monthly Litter Monitoring Bradford East 
Constituency 2015/16 - 2016/17 

2015/16 2016/17

Page 96



  
 

27 
 

Detritus - % of streets failing to reach an acceptable standard 

Ward 2015/16 2016/17 

Bolton & Undercliffe 23.33% 12.23% 

Bowling & Barkerend 16.13% 11.43% 

Bradford Moor 8.33% 4.62% 

Eccleshill 24.19% 10.74% 

Idle & Thackley 6.67% 4.81% 

Little Horton 1.56% 4.38% 

South Area 13.32% 8.14% 

 

 

Detritus levels have fallen in Bradford East between these two periods and that is a 
positive story.  Some detritus is expected on many roads with two main factors 
influencing its presence. The service does not have any current concerns about 
detritus in this area. 
 

23.33% 

16.13% 

8.33% 

24.19% 

6.67% 

1.56% 

12.23% 11.43% 

4.62% 

10.74% 

4.81% 4.38% 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

Bolton &
Undercliffe

Bowling &
Barkerend

Bradford Moor Eccleshill Idle & Thackley Little Horton

Monthly Detritus Monitoring  
Bradford East Constituency 2015/16 - 2016/17 

2015/16 2016/17

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 YOUTH OFFER - BRADFORD EAST AREA
	7 HARROGATE ROAD, APPERLEY BRIDGE - OBJECTIONS RECEIVED TO A PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
	8 *CLEANER AND GREENER STREETS AND NEIGHBOURHOODS IN BRADFORD EAST - DEVOLUTION TO AREA COMMITTEE

